Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited
REFEXREZERER QA

(Stock Code B 11X 3% : 00767)

ANNUAL REPORT

F22012



Contents B 8%

Corporate Information
NEIEF

Letter from the Board
Bt

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEkERERERE

Financial Summary
MBEERE

Corporate Governance Report
rEER®RE

Report of the Directors
ExgRE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN

Consolidated Income Statement
freEEER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e rEBEERR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e MR R R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREHER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERnER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

15

18

19

36

44

46

47

48

50

52

54



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Kwok Fai, Chairman

Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Deputy Chairman
Mr. LIANG Jian Hua

Ms. JIA Hui

Mr. JIANG Yi Ren

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WONG Chun Hung

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen

Mr. WONG Sze Kai (appointed on 14 December 2012)

Mr. LI Sui Yang (ceased on 21 September 2012)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. TAM Hang Yin

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen

Mr. WONG Sze Kai (appointed on 14 December 2012)
Mr. LI Sui Yang (ceased on 21 September 2012)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS
(established on 13 February 2012)

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen, Chairman (appointed on 13 February 2012)
Mr. WONG Chun Hung (appointed on 13 February 2012)
Mr. WONG Sze Kai (appointed on 14 December 2012)
Mr. LI Sui Yang (appointed on 13 February 2012 and
ceased on 21 September 2012)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen

Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu

Mr. LI Sui Yang (ceased on 21 September 2012)

02 Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

HITES
REESE  EE
BEEESE SR
RS
B #xt
(I

FUTES
PRER ST

BYFHITES

EiAE S

R TL e 4
ERELE(WZFT-—FT-ATmAKEL)
FRE L (T ZF A+ AR

DEWE
WABLL

BERZEEERE

EHEMLAE  TE

BUR TR A
EREEFEMR_E——F+_AT+HAESE)
BREFLEAE(R_E——FE A -+—HEE)

REZEERE
(R=E—=—F=-RA+=8K)

BRTEE  TEWN-_E——F-A+=REZE)
HHEEAE (RS ——F A +=HEZMT)
BEREAERZZE—=F+ATHAEEE)
BREELE (R E——E - +=RAEZFYL
NZZE——FhLA-+—BET)

FHEEENE

BB T

R IL e 4

EEELE

FRFSE (RT - —F A+ — AR



AUDITORS

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
Suites 313-317

3/F., Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon's Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE

Units 3301-3303, 33/F.

West Tower Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/pphl

STOCK CODE
767

23]
(B BHAERAERAR
BB

BB 6-8 5%
IHEH
3313317 =

TEARBIT
ERIRTT (BB BRAT

R 4iEFERLE
BAEPREFESEZLARAA
BB

AT

ERKREE1835%

AP LT7E

1712-1716 5548

AfNER

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12
Bermuda

FERER

BB

IR

T8 168-2005%
{ZEHP LT

33/ 3301-3303 &

ACEEY

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/pphl

RRAD SR

767

AT FRERRERAT —F 75

03



LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Pacific Plywood
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | have the pleasure to report on
the financial results, operations and other aspects of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012.

The audit report is presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the Group.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a profit
for the year of HK$62,279,000 (2011: loss of HK$144,959,000), the
basic and diluted profit per share were HK$0.09 per share and
HK$0.09 per share (2011: basic and diluted loss of HK$1.98 per
share and HK$1.98 per share (restated)) respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, the consolidated net assets of the Group
were HK$690,087,000 (31 December 2011: net assets of
HK$410,111,000).

DIVIDEND
No dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil) is
recommended by the Board.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, and through its
subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the business of money lending
and provision of credits, securities investments, provision of
corporate secretarial and consultancy services and forestry business.
During the year, the Group has undergone several significant
investments aiming at improving the financial performance and
position of the Group, including (i) the completion of acquisition of
interests in a forest in the Independent State of Papua New Guinea
(the “PNG") as announced by the Company on 12 April 2012; (i) the
subscription of 8% coupon convertible notes (the “Convertible
Notes") issued by China Environmental Energy Investment Limited
(Stock Code: 986) (“China Environmental”) with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$95,000,000 as announced by the Company
on 26 June 2012 and the conversion price of which was fixed at
HK$0.592 upon its completion as announced by the Company on 12
October 2012; and (iii) the subscription of 90 redeemable convertible
preference shares of Million Wealth Capital Investment Limited
("Million Wealth") at the subscription price of HK$90,000,000 by
Perpetual Master Limited ("Perpetual Master”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as announced by the Company on 11
October 2012.
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Money Lending and Provision of Credits Business

Since obtaining the Money Lenders License under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Cap.163 of the laws of Hong Kong) in 2011, Joy
Wealth Finance Limited (“Joy Wealth"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has provided a wide variety of loans with an
accumulated amount of approximately HK$665,000,000 with
interest rates ranging from 8% to 48% per annum. For the year
ended 31 December 2012, the interest income was approximately
HK$29,981,000 (2011: HK$52,958,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, a reversal of impairment
loss of HK$83,717,000 had been recognised as an income in the
consolidated income statement after the repayment of principal
and interest from a loan debtor. Such recovered and reversed
amount was included in the impairment loss in respect of loan and
interest receivables which was made as at 31 December 2011 as an
utmost prudence approach and strict compliance with the
applicable accounting standards in accordance with the procedure
manual for credit facilities reviewed by a Big 4 Accounting Firm. An
amount of approximately HK$18,294,000 has been provided as an
impairment loss in the current year as prudent and consistent as
last year.

Securities Investments Business

As at the date of this report, the Group had invested in Simsen
International Corporation Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 993) (“Simsen
International”) as a strategic investment with the intention to
promote the finance business of Joy Wealth through the retail
platform provided by Simsen International as the subsidiaries of
Simsen International have a broad customer base and distribution
channels for its businesses such as securities business, insurance
products, money lending and provision of credits etc.

As at the date of this report, the shares of Simsen International are
yet to be disposed of because they are regarded as a long term
strategic investment for the sake of the development of the key
business of money lending of the Group.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EE

On 26 June 2012, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with China Environmental, a company whose shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, to subscribe for
the Convertible Notes (the “CN Subscription”). The CN
Subscription was completed on 12 October 2012. In order for the
Company to enjoy more flexibility in capturing the possible capital
gains, the Company entered into a call option deed with an
optionholder on 12 October 2012, pursuant to which the Company
had agreed to grant and the optionholder had agreed to obtain a
call option at the premium of HK$4,800,000 under which the
optionholder can purchase from the Company the Convertible
Notes with principal amount of up to HK$60,000,000 at the price
equivalent to 120% of the principal amount of these Convertible
Notes.

On 11 October 2012, Perpetual Master entered into a subscription
agreement with Million Wealth (as issuer) and Mr. Fok Ho Yin,
Thomas (as guarantor) (“Mr. Fok"”) pursuant to which Perpetual
Master had conditionally agreed to subscribe for and Million
Wealth had conditionally agreed to issue and allot 90 redeemable
convertible preference shares (the “Preference Shares”) at the
subscription price of HK$90,000,000 (the “Preference Share
Subscription”). Through the Preference Share Subscription, which
was completed on 30 November 2012, the Group will earn a
dividend at a rate of 10% per annum, compounded annually, and
will have an additional money lending platform to further promote
and develop its money lending and provision of credits business.
Perpetual Master is entitled the rights to convert the Preference
Shares into ordinary shares as and when appropriate.

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, the Group has disposed all the
investment in Huili Resources (Group) Limited (Stock Code: 1303)
and made a gain of approximately HK$5,170,000.

Provision of Corporate Secretarial and Consultancy Services
Business

The Group has been conducting the provision of corporate
secretarial and consultancy services business mainly through a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Pacific Vision Advisory Services
Limited ("Pacific Vision”). The Group has recruited a team of
professionals in the areas of accounting, finance, legal and
corporate secretary and has built up a client portfolio with a
number of listed companies.

During the current year, a segment revenue of approximately
HK$5,211,000 and a segment loss of HK$564,000 had been
recorded (31 December 2011: HK$411,000 and a segment profit of
HK$407,000 respectively).
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Forestry Business

On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the acquisition (the
"Acquisition”) of 30% of the entire issued share capital of Profit
Grand Enterprises Limited (“Profit Grand”), which through its
subsidiary has the harvesting rights within a forest sized
approximately 65,800 hectares in the PNG. The total consideration
for the Acquisition of HK$310,000,000 was satisfied as to (i)
HK$33,000,000 by the issue of the convertible bonds in a principal
amount of HK$33,000,000 with conversion price of HK$0.087; (ii)
HK$82,000,000 in cash; and (iii) HK$195,000,000 by the issue of a
10% promissory note in aggregate principal sum of
HK$195,000,000. Details of the Acquisition have been disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 29 February 2012 (the
“Acquisition Circular”). The Group has from time to time been
following up with the relevant government authorities regarding
the outstanding necessary licenses and approvals required for the
commencement of the forestry logging and harvesting in the PNG.
Nevertheless, the Company was recently informed by the PNG
legal adviser that the outstanding necessary licenses and approvals
are more likely to be obtained in year 2014. Up to the date of this
report, the Group has been successfully granted the foreign
enterprise certificate while other remaining necessary approvals
and licenses, namely, the Environment Impact Statement and the
Forestry Clearance Authority which were originally expected to be
obtained in early 2013, are in application progress and are more
likely to be completed and obtained in year 2014. Such unexpected
delay, as advised by the PNG legal adviser, was due to the
Commission of Enquiry into the Special Agricultural Business Lease
system. The PNG legal adviser has confirmed that such enquiry is
not a legal impediment as the Law of the PNG is clear that if the
Forestry Clearance Authority application is in order, then the
Forestry Authority must consider the application. As further advised
by the PNG legal adviser, on the assumption that the applications
for the Forestry Clearance Authority are in order and in the absence
of any unforeseen circumstances, it is expected that there is no
material legal impediment for the Group to obtain the Forestry
Clearance Authority.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EE

OUTLOOK

Money Lending and Provision of Credits Business

Since money lending and provision of credits business constitutes
the current major business segment of the Group, the Group will
further develop this business segment, diversify the customer
portfolio and seek opportunity to cooperate with both Simsen
International and Million Wealth, whose respective principal
businesses involve, among other things, money lending which may
bring a synergy effect.

To mitigate the inherent credit risk of this business segment and for
the sake of efficiency, the Group may consider employing
independent debt collecting specialists/agents or factorising/
assigning receivables as and when appropriate.

Securities Investments Business

Under the recent volatile and fragile global stock markets, the
Board is of the opinion that the Group shall prioritise in long-term
or strategic investment rather than short-term trading investment.
The Group also aims at being flexible every now and then in
managing the investment portfolio and applying the investment
strategy under the then market situation and amid the fluctuating

financial market.

Provision of Corporate Secretarial and Consultancy Services
Business

Although this industry is flourishing gradually, due to keen
competition, the Group is struggling to identify sufficient new
clients and will keep exploring business opportunities and a way
out for this segment.

Forestry Business

With wood being one of the most essential materials in the world,
the Board considers that the potential investment opportunity to
be derived from the forestry industry is immense.

According to long-run historical data collected from the
International Tropical Timber Organisation and price information
available in the PNG, the prices for tropical hardwood logs in
general have been escalating over the last decade. The price trends
of major species of tropical wood were positive and stable in recent
years. According to the statistics published by the PNG Forest
Authority, the weighted average price has recently climbed up.
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The management of the Company has been actively
communicating with the government bodies of the PNG and the
vendors of the Acquisition, who are holding 70% of the issued share
capital of Profit Grand. The Board is optimistic that once the
required licenses and approvals are obtained, the Group will enjoy
the returns from the price appreciation trend of wood which is
anticipated to continue in the near term in light of the sustainable
strong demand.

The Group will carry on to explore and analyse potential projects
with promising prospects in the future and to hunt for opportunities
and ways to strengthen the businesses and to enhance the financial
performance of the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had recorded net current
assets of approximately HK$180,590,000 (31 December 2011:
HK$364,738,000); bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$44,477,000 (31 December 2011: HK$78,781,000) and no
unguaranteed and unsecured borrowings (31 December 2011:
HK$10,000,000). All borrowings as at 31 December 2011 were made
in HK$ and the Group did not enter into any financial instruments
for hedging purpose.

Capital structure

On 19 March 2012, the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) approved the relevant resolutions in relation to the
proposed capital reorganisation at a special general meeting of the
Company, pursuant to which with effect from 20 March 2012, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased to
HK$400,000,000 divided into 40,000,000,000 shares with par value
of HK$0.01 each, and the amount of issued share capital of the
Company on 20 March 2012 was reduced to HK$9,903,401.93
divided into 990,340,193 new shares with par value of HK$0.01
each. Details of the capital reorganisation have been set out in the
circular of the Company dated 23 February 2012.

On 12 April 2012, the Group issued a convertible note with a
principal amount of HK$33,000,000 upon the completion of the
Acquisition as part of the consideration as mentioned above which
was fully converted into 379,310,344 issued ordinary shares of the
Company on 12 April 2012.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EE

On 10 August 2012, the Company proposed to revise and
implement the share consolidation on the basis that every eight
issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each to be consolidated
into one issued and unissued consolidated share of HK$0.08 each
(the “Share Consolidation”).

Meanwhile, the Company had also proposed to raise not less than
approximately HK$191,750,000 and not more than approximately
HK$243,970,000, before expenses, by issuing not less than
342,412,634 rights shares and not more than 435,653,664 rights
shares to the qualifying Shareholders by way of rights issue at the
subscription price of HK$0.56 per rights share on the basis of two
rights shares for every one consolidated share held on the record
date. On the basis of not less than 342,412,634 rights shares and
not more than 435,653,664 rights shares to be issued under the
rights issue, not less than 1,712,063,170 bonus shares and not more
than 2,178,268,320 bonus shares will be issued (the “Rights Issue
(with the Bonus Issue)”). Details of the Rights Issue (with the Bonus
Issue) have been disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 14
August 2012.

On 10 September 2012, upon the completion of the Share
Consolidation, the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was consolidated from 1,369,650,537 with the par value
of HK$0.01 each to 171,206,317 with the par value of HK$0.08 each.
As a result of the Share Consolidation, the number of exercisable
shares of each of the Agent Option and the Longjiang Option (as
defined in the Acquisition Circular) changed from 49,517,009 shares
to 6,189,626 consolidated shares, and the maximum and the
minimum subscription price of each of the Agent Option and the
Longjiang Option changed from HK$0.50 per share and HK$0.25
per share to HK$4.00 per consolidated share and HK$2.00 per
consolidated share respectively.

On 11 October 2012, the Rights Issue (with the Bonus Issue)
became unconditional, 342,412,634 new rights shares and
1,712,063,170 new bonus shares were issued and allotted. The total
number of issued ordinary shares with the par value of HK$0.08
each of the Company became 2,225,682,121. The number of shares
to be issued upon the exercise of each of the Agent Option and
the Longjiang Option were 12,936,318 shares, and the maximum
and the minimum subscription price of each of the shares under the
Agent Option and the Longjiang Option were adjusted from
HK$4.00 per share and HK$2.00 per share respectively to HK$2.00
per share and HK$2.00 per share respectively.

As at the date of this report, the Agent Option has expired.
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Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposal

On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the Acquisition (the
“"Completion”). Upon the Completion, by virtue of the terms of the
shareholders’ agreement entered into between the Group and the
vendors, the Group has gained control over the board of directors
of Profit Grand and its subsidiary and 51% of the total voting rights
in the general meetings of Profit Grand and its subsidiary. In this
regard, Profit Grand and its subsidiary shall be treated as indirect
subsidiaries of the Company and their financial performance shall
be consolidated into the financial accounts of the Company upon
the Completion.

On 12 October 2012, the Company completed the CN
Subscription. The Board considers that the CN Subscription
enables the Group to participate in the development of China
Environmental and provides the Group with an opportunity to share
the returns generated from the business of China Environmental,
which will allow the Company to tap into the recycling industry and
to enjoy the potential upside of the share price performance of the
shares of China Environmental through the possible conversion of
part or whole of the Convertible Notes. The Board also considers
the CN Subscription a good opportunity to further develop its
finance business with an option for the Company to invest in a
certain stake of China Environmental which is a listed company in
Hong Kong. If the Convertible Notes are not converted, the Group
shall receive satisfactory and stable interest income from the
Convertible Notes.

On 30 November 2012, the Preference Shares Subscription was
completed. The Board considers that, through the Preference
Share Subscription, the Group will have an additional money
lending platform to further promote and develop the money
lending business and will also be able to broaden the existing
customers base through the cooperation with Mr. Fok. In addition,
the Preference Share Subscription will bring to the Group a
cumulative dividend at rate of 10% per annum, compounded
annually. In the event that Million Wealth does not have the
required financial resources to make available loans to all potential
customers, it could refer such potential customers to Joy Wealth.

Save for disclosed above, there was no significant investment,
acquisition or disposal that should be notified to the Shareholders
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Segment Information

Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EE

Employees

As at 31 December 2012, 14 staff members were being employed.
In-house training programs were provided for the staff to enhance
their skills and job knowledge. The management of the Company
would continue to foster close co-operation among the staff.

The Group will review the employee remuneration from time to
time and salary increment is normally approved annually or by
special adjustment depending on length of services and
performance when warranted. In addition to salaries, the Group
provides employee benefits including medical and mandatory
provident funds. Share options and bonuses are also available to
employees of the Group at the discretion of the Directors and
depending on the financial performance of the Group.

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not pledge any assets to
banks or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity (31 December 2011: nil).

Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets

As aforementioned, the CN Subscription was completed on 12
October 2012. The Company has from time to time monitored and
reviewed the business and financial performance of China
Environmental. The Group will consider to convert the Convertible
Notes into shares as and when appropriate.

It is the Group's intention to exercise the option to further acquire
the remaining 70% of the equity interest in Profit Grand (the
“Option”) at the option price of HK$700,000,000 or 70% of the
second valuation on the value of Profit Grand and its subsidiary,
whichever is lower, (the "Option Price”) after the relevant required
licenses and approvals are granted. The Board expects to satisfy
the Option Price as to not more than 20% in cash (which will be
about HK$140,000,000) and not less than 80% by procuring the
Company to issue a promissory note, subject to negotiations
between the Company and the vendors of the Acquisition in the
future.
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In order to shorten the payback period of the investment and to
generate income to the Group, the Company intends to incur early
stage capital expenditure as soon as possible after exercising the
Option. As illustrated in the Acquisition Circular, early stage
expenditure on plant and machinery necessary for commencement
of the logging business was estimated at approximately
US$7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$54,320,000), which
shall be financed by the Company by means of internal resources
and any shortfall thereof by appropriate debt/equity financing.

Save for the above-mentioned, as at the date of this report, the
Company had not entered into any agreement, arrangement,
understanding, intention or negotiation about acquiring of any new
business.

It is the Group's corporate mission to continue to explore ways to
improve its financial performance, to diversify its operations into
new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the sources of
revenue. Hence, the Company does not rule out the possibility that
the Company may implement debt and/or equity fund raising
plan(s) to satisfy the financing needs arising out of any business
development of the Group as well as to improve its financial
position in the event that suitable fund raising opportunities arise,
as the Company has from time to time been approached by
investors for potential investment projects.

Treasury Policy

The Group has adopted a treasury policy on 24 May 2011 in relation
to the Group's investments in securities of other listed companies
on the Stock Exchange. The objective of the policy is to enable the
Group to control and govern the possible future securities
investments (if any, which may or may not occur).
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R FROM THE BOARD
BR

Working capital and gearing ratio EELETREERBLLE
The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 WRZZ——FK - T——F+-_A=+—H &K
were as follow: SEEEAELENT -

As at 31 December
R+=—H=+—H
2012 2011

= —
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEr THT

Amounts due to directors JERTE IR 152
Note payable % -
Borrowings == 10,000
Less: Bank balances and cash W IRITRESBR RS (78,781)
Net debt B H (68,629)
Total equity Men R 410,111
Total capital NG 341,482
Gearing ratio (net debt to total capital) EEAGBLER(BEFHEAHERNERE) (20%)

Foreign exchange exposure SME B B2

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs cost in HK$ and is not  ARNEE T BB THREUKNE RELEKRAN - WHBE
subject to material foreign exchange risk. In addition, the Group  EXEKIMNERK © 1IN - KREEBR T ——4F

had no related hedges as at 31 December 2012. TZ A=+ — BB

Contingent liabilities HAREE

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent W_Z——_F+_-F=+—H K"EFETESE K
liabilities. KARIE -
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Kwok Fai, chairman, aged 41, joined the Group since 24
November 2011. He is also the director of two subsidiaries of the
Company. He has extensive experience in the financial markets of
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and is
mainly responsible for providing advice to a wide spectrum of
clients, including private and institutional investors, Hong Kong
listed companies and PRC enterprises, in a comprehensive
approach. He has originated and handled numerous corporate
transactions, including securities dealing, investment portfolio
management and accounting and financial advisory, throughout
the Asia-Pacific region. His insight and acumen in these areas,
along with his substantial experience in international business
development, has aptly assisted the management of his clients in
the oversight of their companies’ businesses. He also has in-depth
knowledge in due diligence review and internal control advisory
which provides him with the expertise in corporate governance. He
is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. He also acts as an independent
non-executive director of China Information Technology
Development Limited (Stock Code: 8178) which is a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Huang Chuan Fu, deputy chairman, aged 39, joined the Group
since 13 April 2010. He is also the director of twelve subsidiaries of
the Company. He has more than 10 years of working experience.
He was the vice president of Nanping Wang Jia Wood Bamboo &
Wood Industry Co., Ltd from 2002 to 2005.

Mr. Liang Jian Hua, aged 43, joined the Group since 29 April 2010.
He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. He has 21
years of working experience in trading and property investment.
Currently, he is the vice president of Zhejiang Shunfeng Steel Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Liang is also a non-executive director of China
Environmental.

Ms. Jia Hui, aged 45, joined the Group since 13 April 2010. She has
more than 20 years of working experience in the area of
merchandising and project management. Since 2003, she has been
appointed as the business development manager of Beijing
International Trade Corporation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

E=NEAEEERE

Mr. Jiang Yi Ren, aged 46, joined the Group since 29 April 2010. He
has more than 20 years of working experience in the area of
manufacturing and property investment. Currently, he is the vice
president of Wenling City Zhong Fa Precision Steel Parts Co., Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Kin Sang, aged 62, is currently the sole proprietor of
Messrs. Peter K. S. Chan & Co., Solicitor and Notaries. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 22 April 2010 and was re-designated as an non-
executive Director on 16 December 2011. He has been a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1982. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Law degree in 1979. He
was admitted as a Notary Public in 1997 and as a China-appointed
Attesting Officer in 2000. He is currently a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan currently acts as an independent
non-executive director of two listed companies in the Singapore,
namely People’s Food Holdings Limited and Luxking Group
Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan also acts as independent non-executive
director of two Hong Kong listed companies, namely China
Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Limited (Stock Code: 1194)
and China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (previously known as
International Taifeng Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 873). Mr. Chan
is also a non-executive director of Pan Hong Property Group
Limited which is listed in Singapore, United Pacific Industries
Limited (Stock Code: 176) and Combest Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8190) which are listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan was an
independent non-executive director of two Hong Kong listed
companies, namely Ming Kei Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8239)
until 26 June 2012 and Rosan Resources Holdings Limited
(previously known as Dynamic Energy Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 578) until 28 April 2010. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Sunray Holdings Limited, which is listed in
Singapore, until 1 September 2010. Mr. Chan was a non-executive
director of Mayer Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1116), which is
listd in Hong Kong, until 21 December 2011. He was also an
alternate director of Zhongda International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 909), which is listed in Hong Kong, until 21 March 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chun Hung, aged 40, graduated from Hong Kong
Baptist University with an honors degree in accounting in 1995. He
joined the Group since 22 April 2010. He is an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
10 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and consulting. Since
November 2005, he has been the managing director of B&C
Finance and Corporate Advisory Limited. Moreover, he was a
financial controller of General Nice Group and its associate, Abterra
Limited, which is a listed company in Singapore until April 2011. Mr.
Wong was also a non-executive director of King Stone Energy
Group Limited (Stock Code: 663), an independent non-executive
director of two listed companies in Hong Kong, namely China
Household Holdings Limited (formerly known as Bao Yuan Holdings
Limited, Stock Code: 692) and Tech Pro Technology Development
Limited (Stock Code: 3823), until 12 March 2013, 30 June 2011 and
7 January 2011, respectively.

Mr. Cheng Po Yuen, aged 37, holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree, majoring in accounting. He joined the
Group since 24 November 2010. He is a practicing accountant in
Hong Kong and is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 10 years of experience in auditing, accounting and finance.

Mr. Wong Sze Kai, aged 26, holds a Bachelor Degree of Business
Administration (Finance Investment Concentration) from The
University of Southern California, U.S.A. He was a director of
Ellafanny Brands (Shenzhen) Limited, steering the business
development and managing the business operation and brand
building. Besides, Mr. Wong possesses corporate finance,
accounting and corporate secretarial experiences in various listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no other relationship between
each of the Directors and the senior management as required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B AR R

INCOME STATEMENT BER
The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of AT AKXREBER NV HEEFEEZKREREGSXE
the Group for the respective years as hereunder stated. BE o

For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=t-HLEFE
2012 2011 2010 2009
—®--f =-T—% <-T-TF -TTAE =TI\

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET THET FHT TAT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(=) (=3) (&=5) (=51)

Revenue Y25 34,720 53,369 4,385 - 734,681
Profit (loss) attributable to the ANA B AFE(S

owners of the Company A (EE) 62,283 (134,081) 75,914 (75,996) (282,776)
Dividends & 8 - - - - -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B FE AR O R 3k

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated statement LA T AARNEER T 7 B 2 KEBIZIGEE T
of financial position of the Group as at the respective dates as AR FHREME -
hereunder stated.

As at 31 December
RT=A=+—H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-—f —E—% ZE-ZTF ZZTNFE ZZZTEN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHAT FHT FHAT THT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(E35) (E5) (g==51)

Property, plant and equipment ¥)% « = I % 1& 2,575 173 35 408,560 503,146
Goodwill EES 306,019 - - - -
Interests in an associate AR NI T = - - 5,468 7,603
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE = - - - 37,692 37,257
Deposit for acquisition of BEEABTEZ RS

logging concession 269 - - - -
Investment deposits WE—IBREZi & - 20,000 - - 7,751
Convertible instruments AR T B (3BE AR

designated as financial NTEEBRER

assets at fair value SRz & REE)

through profit or loss 104,712 - - - -
Loan and interest receivables [EUWE Tk K& FI 5 127,646 273,221 145,752 - -
Available-for-sale financial EESREE

assets 95,922 25,200 - - -
Other current assets Hitmdh & E 68,315 102,989 82,281 80,774 152,175
Current liabilities ViEN=NE (15,371) (11,472) (136,533) (627,907) (706,963)
Non-current borrowings JERNEAIEE - - - (109) (907)
Representing: 18
Share capital fig A 178,054 247,585 1,927 33,194 33,194
Reserves G 511,849 162,526 85,221 (136,466) (40,882)
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 184 - 4,387 7,750 7,750
Shareholders' equity (deficit) % B 25 (E54t) 690,087 410,111 91,535 (95,522) 62
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) (the "Director(s)”) is
committed to uphold a high standard of corporate governance
practices and business ethics in the belief that they are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements (both locally and internationally), and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has complied
with the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) of the former Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the "Former Code"”) and of
the new Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) effective
from 1 April 2012 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
The principles as set out in the CG Code have been applied in the
Company's corporate governance structure.

DEVIATION FROM CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Except for CG Code A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to reelection. The
non-executive Director and all independent non-executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.
The Board does not believe that arbitrary term limits on Directors’
service are appropriate given that Directors ought to be committed
to representing the long-term interests of the shareholders of the
Company.

THE BOARD

The Board is in charge with overseeing the business and affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) that aims at
enhancing the Company’s value for stakeholders. The Director,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders. Roles of the Board
include reviewing and guiding corporate strategies and policies,
monitoring financial and operating performance and setting
appropriate risk management policies.

The primary role of the Board is to oversee how the management
serves the interests of the Shareholders and other stakeholders. To
achieve this, the Board has adopted corporate governance
principles aimed at ensuring that the Board is independent and
fully informed on the key strategic issues facing the Company. As at
the date of this report, the Board comprises of five executive
Directors, one non-executive Director, and three independent non-
executive Directors. In respect of CG Code D.1.4, subsequent to 31
March 2012, formal letters of appointment for Directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment were
subsequently executed by all Directors.
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material relationships with each other. Such balanced board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across
the Board and has met the requirement under the CG Code for the
Board to have at least one-third in number of its members
comprising independent non-executive directors. At least one of
the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in pages 15 to
17 of this report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director annual confirmations of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers such Directors to be independent.

Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules require that the Board
and the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
should include at least three independent non-executive Directors
and members respectively.

The total number of independent non-executive Directors and
members of the Audit Committee fell below the minimum
requirement as set under the Listing Rules after the resignation of a
former Director, Mr. Li Sui Yang, on 21 September 2012. Upon the
appointment of Mr. Wong Sze Kai on 14 December 2012 as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of Audit
Committee, there are three independent non-executive Directors
and three Audit Committee members respectively, and the
Company has then fully complied with the Listing Rules in this
regard.

Under the Bye-Laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors, or
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third, shall be subject to retirement by rotation. They
are required to retire from office at each annual general meeting
and their re-election is subject to a vote of the shareholders of the
Company. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which they retire. Further, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company but shall be
eligible for re-election at the meeting. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each Director.
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of the legal action against the Directors.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the Company are
delegated to the management.

The number of Board meetings and general meetings held during
the year ended 31 December 2012 and the Directors’ respective
attendance record are summarised as follows:

BITES
m=EEAL  FIEE

Executive Directors
Mr. NG Kwok Fai, Chairman
Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Deputy Chairman

Mr. LIANG Jian Hua REERE

Ms. JIA Hui EiEi+

Mr. JIANG Yi Ren B—EEE

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang BRI A 5 A

Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES

Mr. WONG Chun Hung mIRME A

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen BRTTEE

Mr. WONG Sze Kai H5RELE
(appointed on 14 December 2012) (R=ZZ2—=%F+=A

IO HEZE)

Mr. LI Sui Yang FREFTE
(ceased to be member (R=ZZ—=FNA
on 21 September 2012) —+—HEE)
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Number of board

Number of general meetings attended
meetings attended (34 board meetings
(8 in total) in total)
HEEES8=R
RE (534K
EEEER)

H IR R
RERE

(£ 8IR)

1/8 24/34
0/8 34/34
0/8 32/34
0/8 30/34
0/8 31/34
3/8 28/34
1/8 30/34
3/8 29/34
0/0 1/1
0/6 21/24
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Regular Board meetings are convened and held by the Company,
and Directors are given adequate notice to attend such regular
Board meetings or other Board meetings. Directors are also
provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in such
form and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as
Directors. Minutes of regular Board meetings, other Board
meetings or other committees meetings are recorded in sufficient
detail. Drafts of these minutes are circulated to all Directors for
their comments before they are finalised for signatures and records.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Group as well as his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Group's business and operation as well as the legislative
and regulatory requirements in which the Group conducts its
business. The Company had organised an internal workshop which
covered topics of the CG Code and the disclosure of insider
information for the Directors. All the Directors of the Company
participated in the said workshop. In addition, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.

CODE OF CONDUCT ON THE DIRECTORS'’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the terms as contained in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules) as the Company’s code of
conduct for securities transactions and dealings (“Model Code”).
All existing Directors of the Company, upon specific enquiry, have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Ng Kwok Fai serves as the
Chairman of the Company but the Company does not have any
offices with title of “Chief Executive Officer”. The executive
Directors undertake the day-to-day management of the Company’s
business, whereas the Chairman is responsible for management of
the Board and strategic planning of the Group. Under the existing
arrangement, the Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured and such arrangement is for the
benefits of the Group. However, the Board will also review regularly
the board composition and appoint a Chief Executive Officer if a
suitable person is identified.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-
executive Director and all independent non-executive Directors of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company. The
Board does not believe that arbitrary term limits on Directors’
service are appropriate given that Directors ought to be committed
to representing the long-term interests of the shareholders of the
Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was duly constituted on 29 June 2005 and comprises
of an executive Director, Mr. Huang Chuan Fu and two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chun Hung
(Chairman) and Mr. Cheng Po Yuen. Mr. Li Sui Yang resigned as an
independent non-executive Director and ceased to be a member
of this committee on 21 September 2012,

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such

remuneration;

TEERRS

EFRERTHRER

SRR EAIERE  TRRTRERZAC
EERED M EHERF— AT - REERERE
EARAZER - EARA BRI B TR S
[TTHRAEH] 2B - ITEFREARARBTLZ
BHERETHF MEFAEREFTGCEETH
RAGEZRERE - RERABLH BEFEMH
£ CHAENILRBRESI RN TS BAEBAL
BBEMRAKE - A EL2STHERRTE
S HEK URAEAEERRRRETHRAE
& o

FHITES

SRR S ALGRRTE  FRTESEAETEL
H WEARREBRE ARFAFATEEREEE
MIERITESEUE|EEEY  ARBALQFZ
AAAANERBFASHESEWERSE -
EEERR EREFABNARARARRFER
REMNm  BEEESTZRBTHALTES -

EEME

ARAFMEEe((FHEZEE )R _TTQF
NAZTABERAKY KEBERTEEHE
BEREARMEBILIFNTEEREERE(ZF)
LRBRITEE FHEARER T ——FNA
T BBEBUFNTES URIEEEZE

AENE -

VLR s ABNBEER
@ HMARREHESEREREEEFM2BE

R AR R HIET HrM R 2 L B ) B
REZEFRAEFSRIERRS

APEREZRERART T —F4% 23



24

E REPORT

to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment to
ensure that such compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such compensation is
otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation
payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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The number of Remuneration Committee meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2012 and the Remuneration Committee
members’ respective attendance records are summarised as
follows:
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Number of
meetings attended
(2 remuneration
committeee

meetings in total)
HESEXE
(EH2AFMEEEER)

Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman mEAESE  FE 2/2
Mr. CHENG Po Yuen BIRTTHRE 2/2
Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu mERELE 2/2
Mr. LI Sui Yang (ceased to be member on FRFELRE(RZT—ZF

21 September 2012) NAZ+—HEE) 1”7

The remuneration payable to Directors is determined by reference
to their experiences and duties with the Company and the
estimated time spent by them on the Company’s matters. During
the current year, 2 meetings were held to review the remuneration
of Directors and make recommendation to the Board for the new
Director and resigned Director. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was duly constituted on 13 February 2012 and
comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong
Chun Hung (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Po Yuen and Mr. Wong Sze Kai
(appointed on the 14 December 2012). Mr. Li Sui Yang resigned as
an independent non-executive Director and ceased to be a
member of this committee on 21 September 2012.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are:

(@)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and length of service) of the
Board at least annually; and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b)  to consider the skills mix needed in respect of directors and
make recommendations to the Board;
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to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of
Directors for the Board's approval. Academic and professional
qualifications, business experience, expertise and knowledge
as well as other requirements under the Listing Rules will be
assessed to determine if the nomination is suitable;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review the independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence; and
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities;

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive;

to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the Company'’s constitution or imposed by legislation.

In 2012, prior to the setting up of the Nomination Committee, the

Board as a whole is responsible for the said duties of the

Nomination Committee. Subsequent to the formation, the
Nomination Committee had evaluated a nominee to fill up the
vacancy of an independent non-executive Director, a member of

the audit committee and a member of the Nomination Committee

of the Company and made recommendation to the Board.
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The number of Nomination Committee meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2012 and the Nomination Committee
members’ respective attendance records are summarised as
follows:

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen, Chairman

BRITEE  EE

TEERRS

HE-_ZT——F+-A=+t—HLEFERETZ
RELZECERNELRSREZEGKEZHFE
e

Number of
meetings attended
(1 nomination
committee meeting

in total)
HESEXE
(EH1REBZEEEER)

11

Mr. WONG Chun Hung HRM e 171
Mr. WONG Sze Kai (appointed on EREEERZT—ZF

14 December 2012) TZATHBEEZE) 0/0
Mr. LI Sui Yang (ceased to be member TREFEERZZE——F

on 21 September 2012) NAZ+—HEE) 0/0
AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION BB &
The Group engaged ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited to ARNREEZREAZEZ (FB) @S HAERARHE
perform audit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and othernon- THZ _ZT—_-F+_A=+—HILFEZF%
audit services for 3 major transactions under Chapter 14 of the NUEREE-E——F+-_A=+—BIEEH

Listing Rules and a rights issue during the year ended 31 December
2012 at a fee of approximately HK$850,000 and of HK$440,000
respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

On 14 December 2012, Mr. Wong Sze Kai was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee, while Mr. Li Sui Yang had ceased
to be a member of the Audit Committee on 21 September 2012
since his resignation as an independent non-executive director.
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The number of Audit Committee meetings held during the year

ended 31 December 2012 and the committee members’ respective

attendance records are summarised as follows:
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Number of

meetings attended

(2 audit

committeee meetings

in total)

LEEREESER Y

(EH2RERZESER)

Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman EEELRE - B 172

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen RITKE 2/2
Mr. WONG Sze Kai (appointed on BREAER-T—ZF

14 December 2012) TZATmAREE) 0/0

Mr. LI Sui Yang (ceased to be member on TREFEE(BEZE—Z
21 September 2012) NAZ+—HEE) 2/2

The Audit Committee has adopted a new terms of reference on
27 June 2012 which are in line with the CG Code issued by the
Stock Exchange.

The role and function of the Audit Committee:

Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(a)

28

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations, and ensure co-ordination where more than one
audit firm is involved;
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(d)
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to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, external auditor shall include any entity that is under
common control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the
Board, identifying any matters in respect of which it considers
that action or improvement is needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor.

Review of financial information of the Company

(e)

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if preparation for publication quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing the Company'’s
annual report and accounts, interim report and if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to the Board,
the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgemental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;
(v compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Exchange Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

as regards to (e) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the
Board, the Company’s senior management and the
person appointed as the Company’s qualified
accountant and the Audit Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the Company’s external auditors;
and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
such reports and accounts and must give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the issuer’s qualified accountant, compliance officer or
external auditors;

Oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures

(@ to review the Group's financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

(h)  to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system;

(i)  to consider any findings of major investigations of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management's response;

0] where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Group, and to review
and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

(k) to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

()  to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

(m) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

(n)  to report to the Board on the matters set out in this terms of
reference;

(0)  to review the Company's arrangements for its employees can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee shall ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and
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CORPORATE GO

(p)  to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
Corporate Governance Functions

(@) to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(N to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(s)  to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(t)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(u)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
results and reports as well as the Company'’s internal control review
report. The Audit Committee also met the external auditor and
monitored the appointment of external auditor. Besides, the Audit
Committee performed the corporate governance duties as
delegated by the Board as discussed below.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the functions
set out in the CG Code D.3.1. The Audit Committee reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the Group which are prepared in accordance with the
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards in force, and are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are responsible for selecting and applying on a consistent
basis suitable accounting policies and ensuring timely adoption of
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group's overall performance,
financial positions as well as prospects in a timely manner; and the
Board is pleased to report that, so far, the annual and interim
results of the Group are announced within the three months and
two months limit respectively after the end of the relevant periods.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard the
investments of the shareholders and assets of the Group at all
times. The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group's business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining
proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure when business
objectives are being sought. Management has conducted regular
reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the internal control
system covering all material controls in the financial, operational
and compliance controls, various functions for risks management as
well as physical and information systems security. The Audit
Committee reviews internal control issues identified by external
auditor, regulatory authorities and the management team, and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee in
turn reports any material issues to the Board.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
through annual general meetings or special general meetings and
Shareholders are encouraged to participate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

On 30 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to comply with the updated Listing Rules
and to reflect mostly the current communication practices of the
Company with its Shareholders. Such policy aims to (i) promote
effective communication with Shareholders and other stakeholders;
(ii) encourage Shareholders to engage actively with the Company;
and (iii) enable Shareholders to exercise their rights as Shareholders
effectively. However, the Board will review the Shareholders’
Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.

The Company established a range of communication channels to
provide its Shareholders and stakeholders with balanced and
understandable information about the Company. These include
annual general meeting, annual report, interim report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. The annual general meeting
and other general meetings of the Company are primary forum for
communication between the Company and its Shareholders. The
Company shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on
the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided shall
be reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a special general
meeting shall be convened by the members of the Company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-up capital of the company as
at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must submit their
requisition in writing, in which it must state the objects of the
meeting, and be duly signed by the requisitionists, mailed and
deposited at Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(attention of company secretary).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting for a day not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the
meeting is given, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date. Any
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall be
repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the members of the
Company holding at the date of the submission of the proposals
not less than one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-up capital of
the company as at the date of the submission carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the company.

The submission of the proposals must be made within 3 business
days after a notice of the Shareholders’ meeting have been served
to all registered shareholders by the Board. The proposals must be
written and must state the objects of the proposals, and must be
signed by the proposers, and mailed and deposited at Units 3301-
03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong (attention of company secretary);
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more Proposers.

The proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in
order, the company secretary will ask the Board to update the
resolutions by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all registered shareholders, provided that
the proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses involved in publishing
supplementary circular and updating related resolutions. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
proposer will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, no
resolution will be updated as requested.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of company secretary, by email: pphlhk@pphl.com.hk, fax:
(852) 2114 0292, or mail to Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the special general meeting held on 7 September 2012,
amendments to the Bye-Laws of the Company were approved by
the Shareholders, to permit capitalisation of reserves of the
Company to pay up in full any unissued shares or securities of the
Company to be issued to all or some of the Shareholders of the
Company in the same proportion or in such other proportion as
approved by the Shareholders. An updated version of the New
Bye-Laws of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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E DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 46.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity in pages 50 to 51.

DONATIONS

There was $10,000 donation made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in
Note 18 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of the movements in share capital and convertible notes of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out
in Notes 35 and 34 respectively to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in
Note 36(b) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2012 is
set out on page 18 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year. As at 31
December 2012, 2,225,682,121 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.08 each were in issue. Details are set out in the “Capital
structure” section in pages 9 to 10 of this annual report and Note
35 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

During the current year, a share option was granted to China
Longjiang Forest Industry (Group) General Corporation (“Longjiang
Forest Industry”) for its assistance and advice pursuant to the
Strategic Cooperation Agreement entered on 2 December 2011 for
the establishment of a strategic alliance with the Group in respect
of the development and management of the forest sized
approximately 65,800 hactares in the PNG (the “Forest”) (the
"Longjiang Option”). The Longjiang Option entitles Longjiang
Forest Industry to subscribe for not more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement of 2 December 2011, equivalent to
495,170,096 shares. As a consequence of the capital reorganisation
effective on 20 March 2012, the share consolidation effective on 10
September 2012 and the rights issue (with the bonus issue) effective
on 11 October 2012, the number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of the Longjiang Option has been adjusted to 12,936,318
shares at the maximum and the minimum subscription price of
HK$2.00 per share and HK$2.00 per share respectively.

Meanwhile, another share option was granted to Jia Run
Investments Limited (the “Agent”) for its assistance to procure the
Company and Longjiang Forest Industry to enter into the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement as abovementioned and advise the
development and exploitation in the Forest (the “Agent Option”).
The Agent Option entitles the Agent to subscribe for not more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 2
December 2011, equivalent to 495,170,096 shares. As a
consequence of the capital reorganisation effective on 20 March
2012, the share consolidation effective on 10 September 2012 and
the rights issue (with the bonus issue) effective on 11 October 2012,
the number of shares to be issued upon the exercise of the Agent
Option has been adjusted to 12,936,318 shares at the maximum
and the minimum subscription price of HK$2.00 per share and
HK$2.00 per share respectively.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, both the Longjiang
Option and the Agent Option had not been exercised. As at the
date of this report, the Agent Option had been expired while the
Longjiang Option is still in effect.

During the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2012 ("AGM”"),
the Shareholders of the Company duly approved the relevant
resolutions to terminate the existing share option scheme and to
adopt a new share option scheme by authorising the Directors to
allot and issue up to the 10 percent of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of the AGM, that is 136,965,053 shares of
the Company (the “New Share Option Scheme”). The Directors or
an authorised committee are authorised, at its/their absolute
discretion, to grant options to subscribe for shares of the Company
in accordance with the rules of the New Share Option Scheme and
to allot, issue and deal with shares of the Company pursuant to the
exercise of options granted under the New Share Option Scheme.
The subscription price will be a price determined by the Board and
at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant
of the option, which must be a business day; (b) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares. The
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
options must not exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted if such grant would result
in the 30% limit being exceeded.

No share option has been granted or exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2012 under the New Share Option Scheme.

38 Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

HE-_T——F+_A=+—RHILFE #I1H
N RIZMEIY REITE - RARS B - (12
HigE D B M TR AR -

RZBE——FXRNA+-HRT2REBFAS ([
HBEFRg)) L ARRREEAMALILERE
FERRHERTE) 2 BRI - WA IR &) -
REEERERBETARRANBRRAEFT KNG AH
2O EBEITIRAEZZ 10% » B1136,965,053 AN A A
Bt (TETEERR AT S ]) - EF R ERBRZEQE
B JEREMNBREIERER S A ARD
BRENRBARRRKG - WA - T RERE
RIBEFERET B L EREEITEMS R 2
RAEIRG REEKAREESET2ER I
BELATI =2k z&5%E  @QRBERERTA
B(KWEREXA)RMHNERME HRERR
WTE: o) REEBRERT B AfEEEA
BORBZXMEARERMABREHWTE K
AR TEE - BeTEEIEARRE M A sE 31T 2 AR A8 2K
TEBATER ZEHTRMOEE 30% © WigEEH
FRIBFZ 30% PR EE - RIS D (TR IR AE -

HE - —F+-A=+—"HBLFE #BHER
VEFTIE N RE AT B9 S A TR AT B A o



DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2012 and up to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Kwok Fai, Chairman

Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Deputy Chairman
Ms. JIA Hui

Mr. JIANG Yi Ren

Mr. LIANG Jian Hua

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WONG Chun Hung

Mr. CHENG Po Yuen

Mr. WONG Sze Kai (appointed on 14 December 2012)
Mr. LI Sui Yang (resigned on 21 September 2012)

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
Corporate Governance Code Provision A.4 under Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, Ms. Jia Hui, Mr. Huang Chuan Fu, and Mr. Wong
Chun Hung will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. In
accordance with Bye-law 102(B), Mr. Wong Sze Kai will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of Chapter 3 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers such Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company, which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWME

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

On 6 July 2012, an underwriting agreement (supplemented by a
supplemental underwriting agreement on 10 August 2012) in
relation to a rights issue (with the bonus issue) as announced on 10
July 2012 was entered between the Company and Allied Summit
Inc., a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company (“Allied Summit”). As at 6 July 2012 and 10 August 2012,
being the date of entering into the underwriting agreement and
the supplemental underwriting agreement respectively, Mr. Ng
Kwok Fai (“Mr. Ng"”) was the sole director of Allied Summit and
held 20% of the equity interest in Allied Summit. The underwriting
commission payable to Allied Summit was approximately
HK$3,229,000 and the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in
the Listing Rules) are less than 25% and the amount is less than
HK$10,000,000, it was therefore subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.32 of the
Listing Rules. Also, Allied Summit, Mr. Ng and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstained from voting in
favour of the resolution(s) approving the relevant rights issue (with
the bonus issue) at the special general meeting on 10 September
2012.

Saved as disclosed herein, there were no contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company, any of its
fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Brief biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 15 to 17 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors and
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) are
considered to have any interests in the businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, other than those businesses where the
Directors were appointed as directors to represent the interests of
the Company and/or the Group.
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DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
As at 31 December 2012, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors is a director or employee of a company which has an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO") and none of the Directors, the chief
executive of the Company nor their associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any other interests or short positions in the shares
of the Company, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which any
such Director or the chief executive of the Company is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required to be entered into the register maintained by the
Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required
to be notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed
Companies contained in the Listing Rules.

Long position in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of Associated Corporations
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Number of Percentage of

shares of shares of

Name of associated associated

associated Capacity and nature corporation corporation

Name of Director corporation of interest interested interested (%)

HEEERS  HEEERG

EEnH HEEEER BokERME EREYHE = (%)

Ng Kwok Fai Allied Summit Inc. Beneficial owner (Note 1) 20 20
REIE BEmlEa A1)

(Note 1) Allied Summit Inc., an associated corporation of the Company which is
interested in 67.71% of the issued shares of the Company, is owned as to 80%
by Mr. Su Weibiao and as to the remaining 20% by Mr. Ng Kwok Fai.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2012, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of
the Company's issued share capital.

(MizE1) Allied Summit Inc. (A AR ZBEEE) HAEARRFE
BT 67.71% » EBEEZELEERE0%ER M
REDBFAERHEG AT 20% s ©

FERRRADFARDGREBRMD 2
BER KA

RZB-——ZF+-R=+—8B BREEFLHPE
EPIFEXVERFE 336 R EFE 2 T BRRE M
Fecsk > RARIEMGU T EIERREBALQF
EEITIA 5% A L 2 s FORR -
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Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:

Capacity and nature of interest

BoRERNEE

Su Weibiao Held by controlled corporation
FRAER HXEHQRRE

Beneficial owner
BEmlEEA

Allied Summit Inc. (Note 1)
Allied Summit Inc. (B13E 1)

Notes:

1. Allied Summit Inc. is owned as to 80% by Mr. Su Weibiao and as to the
remaining 20% by Mr. Ng.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers and
the largest customer represented approximately 81% and 44%
respectively of the Group's total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount
of supplies attributable to the Group represents the direct interest
expense which is provided by one single lender.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group's largest customers.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section of “Share Options” disclosed above, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2012 was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 45 to the
Financial Statements does not fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. No disclosure requirement is
needed accordingly.

Save as disclosed in "Directors’ interests in contracts” on page 40,
there is no other connected transaction that shall be disclosed
under the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the Board
confirms that the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2012.

AUDITORS

The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 were audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.
ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited was appointed as the
auditor of the Company in succession to SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited, who resigned from the office with effect from 9 January
2013. The Company'’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 were audited by ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company
Limited.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment in the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Kwok Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥8 37 1% B ¥

g

TO THE MEMBERS OF

PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
AFFEREZERERLF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific
Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 156,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2012 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Mei Mei

Practising Certificate Number: P05256

Suites 313-317, 3/F., Shui On Centre,
6-8 Harbour Road,

Wan Chai,

Hong Kong

27 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Z'_Ll/\ = \/
AR TEm

L
For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_ZT——Ft_A=1t—HLFE

2012 2011
== —F—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
liogzg FHERT FET
(Restated)
(&Z31)
Turnover — gross proceeds EEE— SRR 8 48,640 53,369
Revenue g 9 34,720 53,369
Interest income ) EWA 29,981 52,958
Others HAth 4,739 alll
Cost of sales SHE AR (3,003) (2,652)
Interest expenses M EFZ 10 (200) (2,652)
Other cost of sales HAiSEERA (2,803) -
Gross profit EF 31,717 50,717
Other income and gains HAb g A K e zs 11 7,505 8
Reversal of impairment loss (impairment U E 51 K A BOR BB
loss) on loan and interest receivables, net o OREEE) 558 24 65,423 (145,171)
Change in fair value of convertible instruments RBETAEEAEATE
designated as financial assets FRERIIRZ EREE)
at fair value through profit or loss ZAFEES 22 9,712 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets At & & G E & 2 R EEE 23 (19,278) (54,990)
Change in fair value of derivative financial assets TEERmEEL A TEE (4,000) 24,371
Change in fair value of investment held for trading BERPIREZ R FEEH) 3,030 (1,231)
Change in fair value of convertible notes ABRRER s AT EZE 34 - (5,078)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAR 2= 42 - 11,199
Share-based payment expenses PARR 10 B LR I R S 40 (1,367) =
Selling and distribution expenses HE RN HAX = (3.692)
Administrative expenses THER (27,141) (18,446)
Operating profit (loss) reEmA (EE) 65,601 (142,313)
Finance costs [EEI N 10 (3,334) -
Profit (loss) before tax B A& A (5 18) 62,267 (142,313)
Income tax credit (expense) FrETiE e () 12 12 (2,646)
Profit (loss) for the year FERBEF (FE) 13 62,279 (144,959)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: THREREEFREF (BR)
Owners of the Company NRBER A 62,283 (134,081)
Non-controlling interests R (4) (10,878)
62,279 (144,959
(Restated)
27
Earnings (loss) per share: BREF (&E) - 17
Basic and diluted ERREE HK$0.09787  (HK$1.98/87T)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e mRaERE
|

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—F--F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit (loss) for the year FERER (E5E) 62,279 (144,959)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hth 2 mEUkE (Bx)
Available-for-sale financial assets: AtHESHEE :
— Change in fair value — REE = (54,990)
— Reclassification adjustment — RERETERDEAE
upon impairment - 54,990
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEE Rz - -
Total comprehensive income (expense) FRAZEWE (BIk) &%
for the year 62,279 (144,959)
Total comprehensive income (expense) THRERGEEENE (BIX) 45 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company iN/NEIE =N 62,283 (134,081)
Non-controlling interests FEE R R = (4) (10,878)
62,279 (144,959)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR B ESIROn FR R

At 31 December 2012
RZZE——F+=-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Investment deposits
Deposit for acquisition of logging concession
Convertible instruments designated
as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Loan and interest receivables
Trade and other receivables
Investment held for trading
Derivative financial asset

Tax recoverable

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to directors
Note payable

Interest payable

Borrowings

Convertible notes

Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

EFBEE
W - BERRE
e
BETS
BEHABIES S
IR T A (AR
NHEFEBERYIER
TEMERE)
L ESBAE

RBEE

M E TR K N B

TR LT R R LAt FE M R
FHERHHE
ITESREE

A E IR
RITREBRNIRE

RBAE

His AN &R
RN ESFR

ANESE

eI RIS

fEE

AR RE

HEAE

RBEEFRE

EERERRBAE
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2012 2011

—F--F —T—F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B et FET FET
18 2,575 173
19 306,019 -
20 - 20,000
21 269 -
22 104,712 _
23 95,922 25,200
509,497 45,373

24 127,646 273,221
25 8,720 6,288
26 15,050 13,920
27 - 4,000
68 -

28 44,477 78,781
195,961 376,210

29 1,883 1,253
30 154 152
31 10,000 -
31 3,334 =
32 - 10,000
34 - -
- 67

15,371 11,472

180,590 364,738

690,087 410,111




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
KR BB ER R

At 31 December 2012
RZZ——F+=A=+—H

2012 2011
—F--F —T—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaF FHET T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRR A
Share capital [ 35 178,054 247,585
Share premium b =] 524,993 340,037
Share-based payment reserve VARR 19 R B R N SR 40 1,367 -
Other reserves Hih ks 36(a) 100,557 (160)
Accumulated losses R&tEE (115,068) (177,351)
Equity attributable to owners NRTHER ANELER
of the Company 689,903 410,111
Non-controlling interests FEEAR R 184 —
TOTAL EQUITY SR 690,087 410,111

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 156 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

FAE 156 EFTEGEMBERERER-ZTE—=F
AT tEKEETS L ENMRETE  TET

IIATRREFERE

Huang Chuan Fu

Liang Jian Hua

Director Director
EFE EFE
=HEE R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

=A== I%"El%
L
For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_T-—F+-_A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets  Convertible  Share-based Non-
Share Share  revaluation notes  payment Other  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserves losses Total interests
AL E
e St nER EbER  ZEB kiR ;
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT ThL BT Th BT ThTL ThT Th Thr
(Note 34) (Note 36(a))
34)
At 1 January 2011 R-F-—%-f-H 1921 128,651 - - - (160) 43.270) 87,148 4,387 91,53
Loss for the year ERER = = = = - - (134,081) (134,081) (10,878) (144.959)
Other comprehensive income ~~ EREM AN
(expense) for the year (A2
Available-for-sale financial assets:  AEHERBERE
— Change in fair value —ATEEY - - (54990) = = = = (54990) = (54990)
— Reclassification adjustment  — {ER#1T
upon impairment b - - 54990 = = = = 54990 = 54990
Total comprehensive expense ~ FREHARLEE
for the year - - - - - - (134,081) (134,081) (10,878) (144.959)
Issue of right shares (Note 35b))  E{TEBIRA (£ 330)) 69,35 152,580 - - - - - 21935 - 21935
Right issues expenses RS - (6,546) - - - - - (6,546) - (6,546)
Issue of shares (Note 35(c) BRI (et 3500) 85,815 16732 - - - - - 82547 - 82547
Placing expenses EER = 937) = = = = = 937) = 937)
Issue of convertible notes (Note 34) /T #RZ (Hz£34) - - - 91,853 - - - 91,833 = 91,853
Issue of shares upon conversion ¥ TR RZ R
of convertible notes (Note 35(e) ~ E{7IR{A (A 35e) 110488 49557 - 91,853) - - - 68,192 - 68,192
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 4 HE—FHBAR (H£42) = = = = = = = = 6,491 6,491
uE8 201386 § - - . - s 6091 435
At 31 December 2011 R_E——£&
tZA=1-H 247,585 340,037 - - - (160) (177,391) 40111 - 410,11
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
4o A fgE > it e =

I ————.
For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_Z——F+-_A=+—HLHFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
BATHEARLE
Available-
for-sale
financial

assets  Convertible Share-based Non-

Share Share  revaluation notes  payment Other  Accumulated controlling

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserves losses Total interests
e RS
tHEE TRRES AER
ke RGEE  EfRE i (3@E  HERE  ZHER g FERER &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TR TR TER TER TR TR TEn TER
(Note 34) (Note 36(a))
(Hiit34) (et 36(a))

At 1 January 2012 RZF-Z5-A-H 247,585 340,037 - - - (160)  (177,351) 410,111 - 4011

Profit and total comprehensive  EREFIR2EKE

income (expense) for the year (Bx)es - - - - - - 62,283 62,283 ) 62,219
Capital reduction (Note 35(g)) TR lg (it 351)) (237,682) = = - = 237,682 = = = =
Acquisition of subsidaries W B AR - - - 29,748 - - - 29,748 188 29,936
Issue of shares upon conversion of } RREEE

convertible notes (Note 35(h)) TR (st 35) 3793 25,307 - (29,748) - - = (648) = (648)
Issue of right shares (Note 35()) ?;fﬂ#ﬂi Ri3(HriE350) 27393 164,358 - - - - - 191,751 - 191751
Right issues expenses RS - (4,709) - - - - - (4,709) - (4,709)
Issue of bonus shares (Note 35())  B4T4TRR (#iz£35) 136,965 = = - - (136,965) = = = =
Issue of share option BiEhE - = = - 1,367 = = 1,367 = 1,367

(69,531) 184,956 - - 1,367 100,717 - 217,509 188 217,697
At 31 December 2012 R=E--%
t-A=t-H 178,054 524,993 - - 1,367 100,557 (115,068) 689,903 184 690,087
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

melRenER
L
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ftsE FTHET FTAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KReEEE
Profit (loss) before tax BRE AR A (E518) 62,267 (142,313)
Adjustments for: HE
Interest income BSUON (1,690) )
Dividend income R EWA (764) -
Finance costs RE R 3,534 50
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEMRETE 913 40
Share-based payment expenses AR 1 BER KA 1,367 =
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHHESREE 2 RBERE
financial assets 19,278 54,990
Change in fair value of convertible instruments BRI A (EEARRATE
designated as financial assets at fair value BRBERIEZEREE)
through profit or loss ZATHER (9.712) =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of loan EREREWREZ R FEREEE
and interest receivables 18,294 145,171
Reversal of impairment loss on loan and interest  JEUTE 2% & 7 2 6 (B &5 18 0] 5
receivables (83,717) =
Change in fair value of investment FERSHREZ N FER
held for trading (3,030) 1,231
Loss on disposal of investment held for trading HERERFHREZEE 472 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWB QA W - (11,199)
Change in fair value of convertible notes AIMREE AT EES — 5,078
Change in fair value of derivative financial assets T4 S REEZ AT EEZH 4,000 (24,371)
Operating cash flows before movements HEESBHA CEREERE
in working capital 11,212 28,674
Decrease (increase) in loan and interest FEWE T K F SR (1)
receivables 210,998 (399,129
Decrease in trade and other receivables LSRR S % L R MK R IE R 19 3,679
Increase (decrease) in other H b e A K fEET B
payables and accruals = GR) 630 (2,365)
Cash generated from (used in) operations ML EL (FH)2RE 222,859 (369,141)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNEBMER (123) (216)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXKELE (ER) 2ASFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 222,736 (369,357)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of convertible instruments designated
as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of investment held for trading
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceed from disposal of investment held
for trading
Bank interest received
Investment deposits paid
Disposal of a subsidiary

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of note payables
Repayment of bank borrowings
Payment for right issues expenses
Interest paid
Proceeds from issue of shares upon right issues
Advances from directors
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes
Proceeds from placing of ordinary shares
Loans from shareholders of a subsidiary
New borrowings raised
Payment for convertible notes
issue expenses
Payment for share issue expense for
placing of ordinary shares

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER
represented by bank balances and cash

REED

Notes
et

BEAMKRTA(EE/RATE

ERBRIIRCEREE)
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WeEEH B A R
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BEVE  BERRE
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FrS3KR
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012
—EB-——F

HK$'000
TER

BE_Z——F+-_A=+—HLHFE

2011
—F—%
HK$'000
TR

(95,000) -
(90,000) (80,190)
(62,000) -
(12,020) (15,151)

(3,315) (178)
13,448 -
3 3
- (20,000)
- (4,906)

(248,884) (120,422)

(185,000) -
(10,000) (3.764)

(4,709) (6,546)
(200) (33)
191,751 221,935
2 152

- 189,600

- 82,547

- 17,209

- 10,000

- (4,740)

- 937)
(8,156) 505,423
(34,304) 15,644
78,781 63,137
44,477 78,781
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HLLFE

1.

54

GENERAL

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are money lending
and provision of credit business, provision of corporate
secretarial and consultancy services, securities investments
and forestry business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Group.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of

Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

— Transfers of Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of

Underlying Assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group'’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR e B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKFRS 1
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC*)
-Interpretation 20

Committee

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle?
Government Loans?

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures*

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Investment Entities®

Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income!
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine?

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2009-2011
CYCLE ISSUED IN JUNE 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include the
amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and
the amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified
as property, plant and equipment when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and
as inventory otherwise. The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments will have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
transaction costs of an equity transaction should be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The
Directors anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 32 would
not have a material effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 32 OFFSETTING
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 7 DISCLOSURES

— OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement
or similar arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 32 OFFSETTING
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 7 DISCLOSURES

— OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods
within those annual periods. The disclosures should also be
provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with
retrospective application required.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities in the future.

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

— Al recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

—  With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have significant impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS ON
CONSOLIDATION, JOINT ARRANGEMENTS,
ASSOCIATES AND DISCLOSURES

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS ON
CONSOLIDATION, JOINT ARRANGEMENTS,
ASSOCIATES AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date of
HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes
a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor's returns. Extensive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC)-
Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn upon the
effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint
arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31,
there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled
entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled
operations. In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are
required to be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31
can be accounted for using the equity method of accounting
or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance
on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS ON
CONSOLIDATION, JOINT ARRANGEMENTS,
ASSOCIATES AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

These five standards, together with the amendments relating
to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application
permitted provided that all of these standards are applied at
the same time.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these five
standards would not have a significant impact on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 AND
HKAS 27 INVESTMENT ENTITIES

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception to
consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity, except
where the subsidiaries provide services that relate to the
investment entity’s investment activities. Under the
amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is required to
measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair value through profit
or loss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be
met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose
of providing them with professional investment
management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,

investment income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially all
of its investments on a fair value basis.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 AND
HKAS 27 INVESTMENT ENTITIES (Continued)

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have
been made to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with early application permitted. The Directors
anticipate that the application of the amendments will have
no effect on the Group as the Company is not an investment
entity.

HKFRS 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets
and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The
Directors anticipate that the application of the new standard
may affect certain amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 PRESENTATION OF
ITEMS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a “statement of
comprehensive income” is renamed as a “statement of profit

1

or loss and other comprehensive income” and an “income
statement” is renamed as “statement of profit or loss”. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on
items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendment do not
change the option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting
periods.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if the results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When
assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly

controlled entity.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquire and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another standard.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In the Company's statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Consultancy income is recognised when services are
provided.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading are
recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised fair value
gains or losses are recognised on change in fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of the translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interest as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.

BORROWING COSTS
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits
with a maturity of less than three months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (assets or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the change in fair values of investment held for
trading and change in fair values of financial assets at FVTPL
in the consolidated income statement. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including loan and interest receivables, trade and
other receivables, amount due from a substantial shareholder
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL
or loans and receivables. The Group designated listed and
unlisted equity securities as available-for-sale financial assets
on initial recognition of those items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured of fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the available-for-sale financial assets
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see the accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below

its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as loan and
interest receivables and trade and other receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loan receivables and trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in available-
for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of

which th interest expense is included in net gain or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

o on initial recognition, it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (assets or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes interest
paid on the financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables, amounts
due to directors, note payable, interest payable and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group (including related
embedded derivatives) are designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. At
each reporting dates subsequent to initial recognition, the
entire convertible note is measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Certain other convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain the liability component, conversion option
components, and early redemption option which is not
closely related to the host liability component are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability, an
equity instrument and a derivative financial instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the liability component and the early
redemption option component are measured at fair value.
The difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of
the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability component and the early redemption option,
representing the conversion option for the holder to convert
the notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible notes
reserve).

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The early redemption option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. The equity component, representing the option
to convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible notes reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability, equity and early
redemption option components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
early redemption option are charged to profit or loss
immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair value of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provision are measured at the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ACQUIRED IN A
BUSINESS COMBINATION

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are
initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. At
the end of the subsequent report periods, such contingent
liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation (if
appropriate) recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless the fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the shares options granted. The
fair values of the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-
based payment reserve), when the Group obtains the goods
or when the counterparties render services, unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
payment reserve will continue to be held in share-based
payment reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their net present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person'’s

family and that person,

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies the listed equity securities investments
as available-for-sale financial assets and recognises
movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair value
declines, management makes judgement to determine if the
decline in value is significant or prolonged and whether there
is an impairment that should be recognised in the
consolidated income statement. During the year ended 31
December 2012, an impairment loss of HK$19,278,000 (2011:
HK$54,990,000) was recognised for available-for-sale financial
assets. The carrying amounts of the listed equity securities
investment classified as available-for-sale financial assets as at
31 December 2012 were HK$5,922,000 (2011: HK$25,200,000),
the details of which were set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group classifies the unlisted investments in redeemable
convertible preference shares as available-for-sale financial
assets and recognises at cost less impairment. The
management makes judgement to determine if such
investment is impaired, by evaluating the financial health of
and near-term business outlook for the investee including the
operating and financing cash flow. During the year ended 31
December 2012, no impairment was considered necessary in
relation to the unlisted investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2012,
the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$306,019,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss of nil). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment allowances on loan and interest receivables
The Group establishes, through charges against the
consolidated income statement, impairment allowances in
respect of estimated incurred loss in loan and interest
receivables. The allowances consist of individual impairment
allowances. The overall impairment allowances represent the
aggregate amount by which the management considers
necessary to write down its loan portfolio in order to state it in
the consolidated statement of financial position at its
estimated net recoverable value.

In determining individual impairment allowances,
management considers objective evidence of impairment.
When loan receivable is impaired, an individual impairment
allowance is assessed by a discounted cash flow method,
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

In determining collective impairment allowances,
management uses estimates based on historical experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, impairment loss in
respect of loan and interest receivables of approximately
HK$18,294,000 (2011: HK$145,171,000) had been recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Fair value of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
convertible notes

The fair value of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
convertible notes are determined using valuation techniques.
The Group has used its judgement to select an appropriate
valuation method and make assumption, on issuer’s credit
spread, discount rate, expected credit rating and future cash
flow, that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
the transaction date and each reporting date with reference
to the valuation performed by Roma Appraisals Limited
("Roma Appraisals”), an independent firm of professional
valuers. Changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate. Details of the
assumptions used are disclosed in Notes 22 and 34. The
Directors believe that the chosen valuation techniques and
assumptions are appropriate in determining the fair value of
financial instruments.

The carrying amount of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
approximately HK$104,712,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
Nil). Change in fair value of the convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately HK$9,712,000 (2011: Nil) is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

The carrying amount of convertible notes is nil as at 31
December 2012 (2011: Nil).

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses
of HK$15,466,000 due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated is less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal take place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amounts due to directors, note payable and
borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company comprising issued
share capital and reserves. Details of which are disclosed in
respective notes.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associate with each class of capital, and
take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital
structure.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
amounts due to directors, note payable and borrowings, less
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “total
equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position plus net debt. The Group aims to maintain the
gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the

end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Amounts due to directors BN EEHKIE
Note payable ENERE
Borrowings (Note 32) &8 (Hit 32)

Less: Bank balances and cash

Net debt BB 58
Total equity e A
Total capital N CEE]
Gearing ratio (net debt to total capital) BEARBLER

(BEEFEHEAER)
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2012 2011
—E—_—fF —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
154 152
10,000 -
- 10,000
(44,477) (78,781)
(34,323) (68,629)
690,087 410,111
655,764 341,482
(5%) (20%)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. E@ITHR
£Rl T EER

2012
—E—_F
HK$’'000
FET
Financial assets EREE
FVTPL: BRATFEEBEZRTK

AT A (BBE /K
RN EEBERRIIRZ

Convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through

2011
—F——F

HK$'000
THETT

90
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profit or loss CEEE) 104,712 -
Investment held for trading BHERHIEE 15,050 13,920
Derivative financial asset PTESHERE - 4,000
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHESREE 95,922 25,200

Amortised cost: BHACAN ¢
Loan and interest receivables FEWE KR FI B 127,646 273,221
Trade and other receivables JFEE UK B SR e L A JE KRR IR 7,419 5,583
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR E 44,477 78,781
395,226 400,705

Financial liabilities SRaE

Amortised cost: BEERCAN
Other payables and accruals H < 5RIB M FE 5T B 1,880 753
Amounts due to directors FENEERIE 154 152
Note payable EANE 2 10,000 -
Interest payable FER T2 3,334 =
Borrowings EBE - 10,000
15,368 10,905




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include derivative
financial asset, investment held for trading, convertible
instruments designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loan and interest receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets, trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to directors, note payable, interest payable and borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

MARKET RISK

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, PNG and People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, Kina (“PGK") and Renminbi
("RMB"). No foreign currency risk has been identified for the
PNG subsidiary’s financial assets denominated in PGK, which
is the functional currency of the PNG subsidiary to which
these transactions relate.

As at 31 December 2012, certain financial assets of the Group
are denominated in RMB, which expose the Company to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the Group's
RMB denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

RMB AR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
(2011: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currency. A 5% (2011: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% (2011: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.

A positive number/negative number (i.e. in bracket) below
indicate an increase/decrease in pre-tax profit when the HK$
strengthen 5% (2011: 5%) against the relevant currency. For a
5% (2011: 5%) weakening of HK$ against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

Increase in pre-tax profit (loss)

Interest rate risk

The Group'’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank balances
with floating interest rates which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Loan and interest receivables,
convertible instruments designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, note payable and borrowings at
fixed rate exposes the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in Notes 22, 24, 31 and
32, respectively. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, management monitors
the Group's interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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HMERREEREREREK @

MARKET RISK (Continued) ™ iE R b ()
Interest rate risk (Continued) FIZRE (1)
Sensitivity analysis BRE ST

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s net profit (loss)
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

TERETEMEEBERERTET - A%
B4 (B518) FI R & B AR B Y SRS
(EBHTREEILE) -

Increase/ Increase/

decrease in
interest rate
(basis point)

decrease in
profit (loss)
for the year

2012

2011

OTHER PRICE RISK

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and convertible
instruments designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date. If the
prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5%
(2011: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2012 would increase/decrease by HK$1,049,000
(2011: increase/decrease by HK$1,956,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments and
available-for-sale investments.

FREF

AR (25 (&518)
R TR #Em R
HK$'000

THET

100 444

100 (791)

H fth B 1% BLBR

AEEEBE EHRABHRERTRRT
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Rt ERE 2 A FEZESEERFEE
I 0,/ 4 1,049,00058 7T (=T — —4F -
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

94

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to the loan and interest receivables and trade
and other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group has established policies and systems for monitoring
and control of credit risk. The management has delegated
different divisions responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring processes to
ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable
amount of loan and interest receivables, and trade and other
receivables individually or collectively at each reporting date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, management considers
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector.
As at 31 December 2012, the Group's concentration of credit
risk by geographical location is Hong Kong, which accounted
for 100% (2011: 100%) of the total loan and interest
receivables and trade and other receivables.

During the year, an impairment loss in respect of loan and
interest receivables amounting to HK$18,294,000 has been
recognised (2011: HK$145,171,000). However, the Directors
consider the credit risk is under control since the
management exercise due care and check the financial
background of these debtors on a regular basis.

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising from the
Group's money lending business, 29% (2011: 65%) of the total
gross loan and interest receivables as at 31 December 2012
was due from the Group's largest customer and 83% (2011:
90%) of the total loan receivables as at 31 December 2012 was
due from the Group's five largest customers for the Group's
money lending business.

The credit risks for bank balances are considered minimal as
such amounts are placed with banks with good credit ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims at maintaining a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash
and cash equivalents. Details of the Group's amounts due to
directors, note payable, interest payable and borrowings are
disclosed in respective notes. The Directors have reviewed
the Group'’s working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group has no
significant liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities in
accordance with the earliest date on which the Group would
be required to pay.

Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights
within one year after the reporting date. The maturity analysis
for other non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared based
on the scheduled repayment dates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

Weighted
average
interest rate

i
PHRIE

At 31 December 2012 R-B——F
t=A=+-H
Other payables and accruals Hip EATH0E K
Bz &R
Amounts due to directors [ENEZHE
Note payable NS 10%
Interest payable FERHE,
At 31 December 2011 RZB——%
+-A=1+-8
Other payables and accruals HAER F0E K
Bt &
Amounts due to directors [ ERHE
Borrowings (Note) & (ht) 10%
Note: Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the

“on demand or within one year” time band in the above maturity
analysis. There was no discounted principal amount of these

borrowings as at 31 December 2011.
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or within less than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years  cash flows amounts

RER —FNE KRR
F-FR EREUAT RERELSE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TAT

1,880 - 1,880 1,880
154 - 154 154
10,529 - 10,529 10,000
3,334 - 3,334 3,334
15,897 - 15,897 15,368
753 - 753 753
152 - 152 152
10,333 - 10,333 10,000
11,238 - 11,238 10,905
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices respectively;

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis;
and

o the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated
using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow analysis is performed
using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

7. BXRREEEERBEE)

DNEE@R
REI R R ER 2 A FETE

TREHNTZERRIZAFEAEZESR
TEASH  DRAFEABRZEEDRF
N EX T

— FHARBEREEXEBIEEMS
HBECREHAR) B2 AFERNE -

— BBBBRFAFZT-RZBEIN H
BEXAEER (BE T&)‘JZF'EJ%((EDE
fiﬂﬁﬁ VEERMBZBARBRE

NHERTE

— SRR ALFRBAIBERMIHH
BEIBEEGABE) ZEEXAR
BABIBRZBEREMEZAFER

EO

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- hd B E=/ Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TERT THET
2012 st
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESREE 5,922 - - 5,922
Investment held for trading BERSHIRE 15,050 = - 15,050
Convertible instruments designated ~ A[# % T & (487 A%
as financial assets at fair value N EEBERSR
through profit or loss ZEREE) - 104,712 - 104,712
20,972 104,712 - 125,684
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BIXXEREEBEREE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE (Continued) DNFE @)
Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of REI M RIREBERZ N FEFE (&)
financial position (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1 B B=] 4Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT FATT FHETT
2011 —ET——%F
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ RIfEHE SR EE 25,200 = = 25,200
Investment held for trading BEXFHRE 13,920 = = 13,920
Derivative financial asset TESREAE 4,000 = = 4,000
43,120 — — 43,120
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the current RAFERBEFE  F—REF L 2H
and prior years. IR -
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of THEEF=—RAFHETEZHEK

financial assets

Derivative

financial asset

TTESRMEE

HK$'000

FHTT

At 1 January 2011 R-_ZE——%—H—H 8,410

Charged to profit or loss SEEERENICS (4,444)

Exercise of put option 1TE 0GBt (3,966)
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 RNR—E——F+—_A=1+—HK

—T——F+=-HA=+—H -

Of the total gains for the year ended 31 December 2011 BHE_Z——F+_A=+—HILFEFA
included in profit or loss, loss of approximately HK$4,444,000 BazWmesEsD - EEK4,444,00078 7T
relates to derivative financial asset held at the year ended 31 BERRBE_T——F+_A=+t—HILF
December 2011. Fair value changes on derivative financial EREZITESREE - TEEREEZR
asset are included in “Change in fair value of derivative TEEHSAAGEEERP [TESREE
financial assets” on the face of consolidated income ZATFEEFHIA -

statement.
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8.

100

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable from the business of money lending and provision
of credits, provision of corporate secretarial and consultancy
services and securities trading during the year. There was no
turnover generated from forestry business during the year
ended 31 December 2012. The following is an analysis of the
Group's turnover:

Interest income from loan receivables

Consultancy income

Gross proceeds from disposal of
investment held for trading

SEGMENT INFORMATION

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

Information reported to the board of directors (the “Board”),
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. No
operating segment identified by the chief operating decision
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group. Specifically, the Group's reportable
and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Money lending — business of money lending
and provision of credits
2. Consultancy — provision of corporate secretarial
services and consultancy services
3. Securities — trading of securities and
investments investment in long-term
securities
4. Forestry business — forest logging and harvesting

Forestry business is a new reportable and operating segment
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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EEWEFAREEER B8 RHEXEW
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ST BLEFE HRMEBABELLR
B UTRAEE ZEERN :

2012

—E—_F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET T
29,981 52,958
5,211 411
13,448 -
48,640 53,369
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. FEER @

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued) DR ERRE (E)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results REFBZ W MEFIZO 2R MEESFED
by reportable and operating segment: i N

Money Consultancy  Securities Forestry
lending services investments  business Total
B8 BARE RBHFRE HHEK B3t
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TR THER THER
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE_2—_F
TZA=t-ALEE
Turnover — gross proceeds EEE— GIEEE 29,981 5,211 13,448 - 48,640
Segment revenue okl
From external customers: REIAREE 29,981 5,211 (472) - 34,720
Segment result PEEE 91,938 (564) 236 (2,354) 89,256
Unallocated corporate expenses ol WNCIE 5T (19,909)
Unallocated corporate income RAOBEARMA 254
Change in fair value of a derivative —EfTESRBEL
financial asset ATEZD (4,000)
Finance costs RARKA (3,334)
Profit before tax BRE AR A 62,267

Money Consultancy  Securities Forestry
lending services investments business Total
B8 BARE BERE  BRER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE_T——F
TZA=T-HLEFE
Turnover — gross proceeds EEE — FHIAES 52,958 411 - - 53,369
Segment revenue ek ilie
From external customers: KEIIRRE : 52,958 411 = = 53,369
Segment result DEELE (112,489 407 (56,221) = (168,303)
Unallocated corporate expenses L WNEIE 5 (4,510
Unallocated corporate income RAOBARBA 8
Change in fair value of convertible notes A2 Zig 2 A FEE (5,078)
Change in fair value of derivative TEERMEEZ AT EEE
financial assets 24,371
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRHBAR z W= 11,199
Loss before tax B RIER (142,313)

APHFEXRERBBRAE T —FFH
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9.

102

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segment are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment result represents the profit earned (loss from)
attributable to each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, directors’ emoluments, bank interest
income, change in fair value of convertible notes, change in
fair value of derivative financial assets, gain on disposal of a
subsidiary and finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the Board for the purposes of the resources allocation and
performance assessment.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

9.

Money Consultancy

lending
&

HK$'000

At 31 December 2012 R-E-—-#+=-A=+—-H

TR

ASSETS {3

Segment assets DBEE 145,117
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEARIEE

Total assets BERE

LIABILITIES aff

Segment liabilities HEEE 27
Unallocated corporate liabilities APRARARE

Total liabilities AfELE

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

PEER B

PRNEREE(BE)

MU SEy e RERI It AEEe
SRR o DBLBIEE D BEREEZ FTE
B Rl (FTEE £ 548 (b 2 BR AP o 47 BUAR
A BEHS  RTFEMRA - THRRZE
TRAFEERY  HTESREET AT ESE
g HE—RHB D T2 s REERA) o
W IRE RSB ETEEREMAEESER
ZHR -

TREERERE
AEBEZAIZHMEENBEN ZEERA
BT

Securities
investments
HK$'000
TR

Forestry
business
HMER
HK$'000

TER

Total
@it
HK$'000
TER

services
B R
HK$'000

TR

2,073 222,71 306,288 676,189

29,269

705,458

10 - 976 1,013

14,358

15,371
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. ZEERM®W
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) PTHEEREE®E)
Money Consultancy  Securities Forestry
lending services investments business Total
E  #ARE EFRE  BHER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT THT THT

At 31 December 2011 R-Z—F+-A=+—H

ASSETS BE

Segment assets HBEE 330,165 311 39,120 = 369,596

Unallocated corporate assets RAPBAREE 51,987

Total assets BrEaE 421,583

LIABILITIES aff

Segment liabilities PERaR 9,573 500 = = 10,073

Unallocated corporate liabilities KPR ABIEE 1,399

Total liabilities BEESE 11,472

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and HERSBRBROIESBEERMNE

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other s MAEREHSEEKLEDE  EWME -
than property, plant and equipment, investment WEI&E REF® TEERE
deposits, derivative financial assets, certain other E - B THMEWRGRIENLRE TIET
receivables and certain bank balances and cash. Assets RERRBE SR BRI 2MHBHA
used jointly by reportable segments are allocated on 2 BERERIT 23,5 HEARERK
the basis of the revenues earned by individual PaN )3
reportable segments; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other o FIERERBIRELEDE RN
than amounts due to directors, certain other payables, EEHE ETEMEMKIE - BN
note payable, interest payable and tax liabilities. 2B - BTN ERRIBEERI
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
For the year ended 31 December 2012

9. DEEHR®
HitnEER
HE-—®——fF+=-FA=+—HILFE

Securities

Money Consultancy

Forestry

lending  services investments  business Unallocated Total

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Additions to available-for-sale financial assets

Additions to convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Change in fair value of convertible
instruments designated as financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss L RATHERD
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AfHESREEL
financial assets REEE

Change in fair value of investment held
for trading

Reversal of impairment loss on loan
and interest receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of loan and interest receivables

Share-based payment expenses

Loan interest income

Interest expense

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not
included in the measure of segment profit

or loss or segment assets: e

Interest expenses MERX

Depreciation on property, plant and 0% BERRERE
equipment

Additions to property, plant and equipment RE#E « BE Rk

Change in fair value of a derivative TEeMEEL A TERY
financial asset

Net foreign exchange gain ER W EE

Bank interest income RITHIEMA

Income tax credit FEmER

104

f&
HK$'000
TER

SIAGEDERFHERL
PREECEE:

BHAHhESRERE

REARRTA (TR
BAFEERREK
LEHEE)

TRRTA(BEARATE
BlRERIIR SHAE)

RIERGRECATERD

EUER LN B A EBRED

ERARUEREHE
REBR

AR RERRAF X

ERHSHA

MERX

THRTREERRERM
B &I AGEN LT
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEER®)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) HitnEER (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE—FT——F+_A=+1+—HIFFF

Money Consultancy  Securities Forestry

lending services investments  business Unallocated Total
ff8 #HARE FrRE  BMERE A0k st
HK$000 ~ HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET  TER TET TR  TEn TAT

Amounts included in the measure of FIAGHEABRNREER
segment profit or loss or segment assets: ~ PHEEEZEE :

Additions to available-for-sale financial assets A/t HESREE = = 80,190 = = 80,190
Impairment loss on available-for-sale MHHESREE JREFR

financial assets = = 54,990 = = 54,990
Change in fair value of investment held BERSREZATER

for trading - - 1,231 - - 1,231
Impairment loss recognised in respect EREARREFRME

of loan and interest receivables REESE 145,171 - - - - 145,171
Loan interest income EFHBHA (52,958) - - - - (52,958)
Interest expense HERE% 2,652 = = = = 2,652

Amounts regularly provided to the chief ~ EHiMEELERRARME
operating decision maker but not included BT 5| A5 &5 B
in the measure of segment profit or loss IBRINREE

or segment assets: e
Depreciation on property, plant n% - BERIXENE

and equipment - - - - 40 40
Additions to property, plant and equipment  AEWE « BE RikfE - - - - 178 178
Additions to investment deposits ENRET S - - = - 20,000 20,000
Change in fair value of convertble notes PR EE A FEE - - - - 5,078 5,078
Change in fair value of derivative ITEEREEZATERD

financial assets = = - = (24,371) (24.371)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHBARIZME - - - - (11,199) (11,199)
Net foreign exchange gain B 5 g F = = = = 4 0
Bank interest income RITHEMA - - - = @) ()
Income tax expense FriERiAx - - - - 2,646 2,646
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. ZEER®W
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION thEE R
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and PNG. AEBNEBREMEFENDELEETR
The geographical location of the Group’s revenue from REEIINAE P W 2 IBALE TR EEM
external customers based on the location of the operations. EHEE AEBIERDEEER(TEE
Information about the Group’s non-current assets, excluded ZERRMTR)DAEEZHIBAE RIKIE o

those financial instruments, is based on the location of the
assets.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMREF 2l FRBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®—_F —T——F —E-——f —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FABT TFH T AT
Hong Kong &5 34,720 53,369 2,575 20,173
PNG Efm ANz = - 306,288 -
34,720 53,369 308,863 20,173
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EREEEFEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years RIERFEEAEBBRRERI0% TP
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as Wasan T :
follows:

2012 2011

—E—= —E——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THETT

Customer A (revenue from money lending) ZEFPH (&) 15,386 10,787

Customer B (revenue from money lending) &5 7 ({8 & izs) 5,851 N/ANER
i The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total ! HERENEFE IR RN EE 5 B 10% 410

revenue of the Group in the respective year.  ©
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10. FINANCE COSTS

11.

10. BE KA

2012
—_E—_F
HK$'000

TR

Interests on: AT&EZHE

— note payable

—RAEE 3,334

2011
—E——F
HK$'000
FHTT
(Restated)
(&%)

Interests on (included in cost of sales): ATEIEZFE (GTAHESKA) :

— other borrowings wholly repayable
within one year
— convertible notes

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Bank interest income

Consideration from granting of call option
(Note 22)

Interest income from convertible instruments

Dividend income

Others

— AR —FARHREE

ZEMMEE 200 2,602

— ABRER - 50
200 2,652

3,534 2,652

11. H AR s

2012 2011

—E-—F —ET——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHIT

FRITH BN 3 3
REF L REEE S RE

(MF5E22) 4,800 =

KRBT A ZFBUA 1,687 -

A% S U A 764 _

HAth 251 5

7,505 8
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2. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax

— Current year
— Overprovision in prior year

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

The tax (credit) expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit (loss) before tax per the consolidated income statement

as follows:

Profit (loss) before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax rate
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
not recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised
Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdiction
Overprovision in prior year

Income tax (credit) expense

Details of deferred tax were set out in Note 33.

12. BB (IER)BEX
2012 2011
=F—-F —FT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
BB

— RERE = 2,646
— EFRFERE (12) -
(12) 2,646
BEBMNER MM EFE 2 G ERFEF

B 16.5%:18E -
FRAFRE (KR A JHEEBRRTEZ

BRBLADEF (B1R)

A PTG TR K 16.5%
(ZZ——%F : 16.5%)
STE IR

AR 2 RS2

BERBBRA Z G &
REER A T E 258
2R E
RERRBBEBZMIBHE
) AR R ER R IEEE

HAih BLARE R A2 2 M8

NI IR =7
T E B

Frig® (%) MX

BRB AT A (&518) BRI T ¢

2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
62,267 (142,313)
10,274 (23,482)
5,670 18,007
(15,862) (6,002)
48 12,903
172 1,220
(303) -
1 _
(12) =
(12) 2,646

R A TR M FESS -
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13. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13. FREF (BR)
2012 2011
—E2E——F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived FRm A (BE) T840k
at after charging (crediting): GIFA) AT BIERBEN
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN B < 850 600
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) E=2M< (fHE14) 2,798 473
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) ETRA(TBEIEESEHE)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — e TENEMEF 5,929 3,337
— Retirement benefit scheme contribution — RRFE AT B 5K 325 92
Total staff costs B T A 4858 6,254 3,429
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « = M&ETE 913 40
Net foreign exchange gain R e =t (14) (4)
Minimum lease payment under operating lease T NIEF&LHEE
in respect of land and buildings 2 =R EFKIE 1,718 467
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 14. EBRITHARME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2011: ENSEN TR TR (ZE—F : +—%)
eleven) Directors and the chief executives were as follows: EERTHREH 2MEmT -
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—F——fFf+_F=+—HIEE

Salaries, Retirement

wages and benefit
other scheme
Fees benefits contribution Total
¥e -I& RIKER
e REMBER BE 153 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR TR TER
Executive directors: HITES -
Ms. Jia Hui BEgt = = = =
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu BEREELE = = - =
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren B—Ex4s = = - =
Mr. Liang Jian Hua REERLE = = - =
Mr. Ng Kwok Fai REELE 1,440 - - 1,440
Non-executive director: FPITEE -
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PR 4 600 425 - 1,025
Independent non-executive BUIFHTEE
directors:
Mr. Li Sui Yang' PREF AT 87 = = 87
Mr. Wong Chun Hung EHEM LA 120 - - 120
Mr. Cheng Po Yuen BRTEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Sze Kai? = RER A2 6 s - 6
2,373 425 - 2,798
v Resigned on 21 September 2012 ! R-Z——FAR=+—HEHE
2 Appointed on 14 December 2012 ? R-FE-——F+ - AtHBAEERE
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14. EERTHEARTME &)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE—F——H#+-HA=1—HIFE

Salaries, Retirement
wages and benefit
other scheme
Fees benefits  contribution Total
Fe IE RIKTER
we  REMERN sHEIE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHAT THAT
Executive directors: HITESE
Dr. Budiono Widodo! EfERE L = = = =
Mr. Sardjono Widodo! ERELE = = = =
Ms. Jia Hui L - - - -
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu BERLE - - - -
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren B—{tk& = = = =
Mr. Liang Jian Hua REERs - - - -
Mr. Ng Kwok Fai? REER A2 148 - - 148
Non-executive director: IHTES
Mr. Chan Kin Sang* PREZAE A 25 - - 25
Independent non-executive BUIHHTEE -
directors:
Mr. Li Sui Yang?® EREF A 4 = - 4
Mr. Wong Chun Hung HIBMES A 100 - - 100
Mr. Cheng Po Yuen BRITEE 100 = = 100
Mr. Chan Kin Sang* BRI 96 - - 96
473 - - 473

> woN -

Resigned on 17 January 2011

Appointed on 24 November 2011

Appointed on 16 December 2011

Re-designated as non-executive director from independent non-

executive director on 16 December 2011

Apart from the Directors, the Group has not classified any

other person as a chief executive during the years ended 31

December 2012 and 2011.

emoluments in both years.

No Directors waived any

c& wooN -

A2 F— A+ HEE

AR ——F+ A THRAKERE
R_B——F+ At AEZRE
R-F——F+ A+ NBERBIFRTESR
ERFERTES

2

BREEI AEERBE_ZT——FR_F
——Ft+t A=t A LEFELEMEFE
L AL D BRITHAE - N EFEDEHR
REMEEHE -
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15. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2011: two) were Directors whose emoluments are

nVT\

included in the disclosures in Note 14. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2011: three) highest paid individuals
were as follows:

15.

BEME

AEERAERSHFALH ME(ZF——
FMB)RESF HMSERWE 142 W
BERET -HRI=R2(CT——F:=Z82)K
BHALTZMEWT

2012 2011
=F—-F —F—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Salaries, allowance, other benefits and bonus %ﬁ’i\ AL - EhaE R R AIEAT 1,768 935
Retirement benefit schemes contribution RIS 41 30
1,809 965
Their emoluments fell within the nil to HK$1,000,000 band. %5 2 Bl T2 = 1,000,000 7T 2 [ °

During the two years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals and Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

16. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

17. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

F{ER

Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings (loss) per share
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16.

17.

REE-_ZE——FRk=-FT—F+=H
=t+—BHUEMEAFERN  AEE@RERAS
T ALTRESZMNME  (EAINARSE
Bk INARE B & 2 2R sk (e ABER(E o

KRB
REE_Z——F+_A=+T—HLFER
I R B SRR AR S - B RS HRIAR
IMEEZRETMARE (T ——F &) -
BRERN (EE)

AR T ARG R AR R A (6
18) YIRS TFIBIE S -

2012
—E—_F

2011
HK$ 000
FHT

HK$'000
TR

BEBREARET
&5 (BR) &% (EE)

62,283 (134,081)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

17. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 17. BRER (EE) @)

2011
—E——F
‘000

T
(Restated)
(E7)

Number of shares R EE
Rt EERERRR (BE)
2T AR E T2 693,057 67,623

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings (loss) per share

BERELAR2YE

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Share options (Note) AR (Mat) - N/ANE A
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the F{EatESMEERF (EE)
purpose of diluted earnings (loss) per share 2 E A R T & 693,057 67,623

Note: The computation of diluted earnings per share in 2012 does not assume
the exercise of the Company's share options because the exercise price
of those share options was higher than the average market price for
shares for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share has
been adjusted for the share consolidation on 20 March 2012
and 10 September 2012 and the effect of right issues (with
bonus issues) on 11 October 2012. Details of the share
consolidation and right issues (with the bonus issue) are set
out in Note 35.

The denominator for the purpose of calculating basic and
diluted loss per share in 2011 has been restated to effect of
the share consolidation and right issues (with bonus issues)
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Mt : RZT——FrESREFRFG - WERR
ARIBREEETE  AREEREZITEES
REBE=ZT——F+-A=+—RHLEFEZR®H
FHE -

REsTESRERNREERT (FE) 2 L8
ENEFESEER —E——F=A-+HK
TE-—HFNATHZBRHBEAEHUAR-Z
——F+A+— B 2B EA R EEITIEL
o Rn A G R AR E AT BT R IB SR T
F£35

SFE R —FEREAREESENMRAY
HEEN - Ut ABZE_ZE——F+_H
=+ —HIEFERGLE O MR AT AR EE 1T

=213
a7
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - MERRE
Furniture,
fittings and
equipment
B £E
R "E it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FET

Motor
vehicles Total

Leasehold

improvement

HENEEE
HK$'000
57

COST
At 1 January 2011
Additions

At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012
Additions

At 31 December 2012

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2011
Provided for the year

At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012
Provided for the year

At 31 December 2012

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

R
R-Z—F—H—H = 431 = 431
NE = 178 = 178
RZE——F+ZA=+-8BR

—T-——%—f—H = 609 = 609
ANE 2,500 37 778 3,315
R-E--§+-A=1—-H 2,500 646 778 3,924
ZitiE
R-ZE—F—H—H = (396) = (396)
FNEE - (40) = (40)
RZB——&E+-fA=1+—-HE

—T——%—Hf—H = (436) - (436)
FNELE (787) (48) (78) 913)
R=B-—f+=-A=+-H (787) (484) (78) (1,349)
REE
R=B-—fF+=-A=+-H 1,713 162 700 2,575
R-Z—F+-A=+—H = 173 = 173

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of expected

equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

useful life and period of the lease
Furniture, fittings and 20%
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19. GOODWILL

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

19. &

HK$'000
TAT

COoST RS

At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012 +
i

R—_ZFE——F—A—H —_F——&F
—“A=+—8Bk-_ZT——F—H—H -
MIB R A EAE (Mt 41) 306,019

Avrising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 41) I
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB——F+=-BA=+—H 306,019
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT R E

At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2012

R=-ZE——&—H—H"
—2——H+-A=1+—HEK

—EB--Ht=HA=1—H =

CARRYING VALUE BRTE{E
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——HE+=-A=+—AH 306,019
At 31 December 2011 RN—_ZE——F+—-_A=+—H =

For the year ended 31 December 2012, addition of goodwill
amounted to approximately HK$306,019,000 was arisen from
the acquisition of 30% equity interest of Profit Grand
Enterprises Limited (“Profit Grand”) and its subsidiary (the
“Acquisition”), including I-Sky Natural Resources (PNG)
Limited (“I-Sky Natural”) (collectively referred to as the “Profit
Grand Group”) (Note 41). Profit Grand Group has been
granted the right to operate sawmills, harvest trees and sell
logs, in the forest located in PNG with ground area of
approximately 65,800 hectares (the “Project Area”).

Goodwill was allocated to the Group's cash-generating unit
identified according to the operating segment. The goodwill
as at 31 December 2012 was attributable to the cash-
generating unit that comprises the forestry business segment.

The recoverable amount of the forestry business segment
cash-generating unit was based on value in use and was
determined with reference to the valuation report issued by
Roma Appraisals.

HE-_T——H+-A=+—HItEE &
UzBEProfit Grand Enterprises Limited ([ Profit
Grand|) & H if & ~ 7] ( & #&1-Sky Natural
Resources (PNG) Limited ([I-Sky
Naturall) * #t % [Profit Grand % & |) <
30% Ax ([ W B =18 ) i g E 8 11 49
306,019,000 7t (Mf &£ 41) © Profit Grand &
B &% TR Al £ B gE ¥ 44 N SR 3R A 1R
#965,800 A ([TH B & ) 2 M & HE AR
B~ RARKRSEERAK o

BEAEERBRKESV BN 2 ARERS
ELE -R-_T——F+-A=+—AZ
BENFEBENRREB DB 2R SELSE

fiz o

AMEB DB REELBEM 2 KB
TIREREBENE  TK2EEFTHEL
ZIEERERETE -

ATEREBRARAT T —FFR 115
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19. GOODWILL (Continued)

Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash

flows generated from the continuing use of the cash-

generating unit. The calculation of the value in use was based

on the following key assumptions:

Cash flows were projected based on financial budget
approved by management. Management has planned
the harvesting and selling activities and reforestation for
the first 30-year cycle of the Project Area based on the
sublease agreement with the landowners.

Revenue was projected based on management's
expectations for market development and the
harvesting plan.

Timber product average domestic price growth at 5.3%
per annum and average export price growth at 2.1% per
annum.

A pre-tax discount rate of 15.54% based on the data
and factors relevant to the economy in PNG, the forest
industry, and the timber products in PNG.

All relevant legal approvals and business certificates or
licenses to operate the business in the localities in which
the Group operates or intends to operate would be
officially obtained and renewed upon expiry.

The recoverable amount of the forestry business segment was

determined to be higher than its carrying amount. Therefore,

the Directors considered no impairment on goodwill is

required for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INVESTMENT DEPOSITS

21.

On 28 July 2011, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding (the “MOU") with Able Famous Limited and
Peak Sino Limited (collectively referred to as the “Vendors”)
who are independent third parties to the Group, in relation to
the potential Acquisition. Pursuant to the MOU, the Group
paid a refundable deposit of HK$10,000,000 to the Vendors
for this potential Acquisition.

On 2 December 2011, Century Praise Limited (“Century
Praise”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a conditional agreement with the Vendors in relation to
this potential Acquisition. Century Praise had further paid a
refundable deposit of HK$10,000,000 to the Vendors for this
potential Acquisition.

The Acquisition has been completed on 12 April 2012 and the
investment deposits had been used to settle part of the
purchase consideration. Details of the Acquisition has been
stated in Note 41.

DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF LOGGING
CONCESSION

On 30 May 2011, I-Sky Natural has entered into a project
agreement with Vabari Development Corporation Limited (the
“Landowners”) for a forest development project in which
forest logs will be harvested for the purposes of sale and
export and other related activities incidental to and arising
out of the project in the Project Area. Pursuant to the project
agreement, |-Sky Natural could enjoy the logging concession
from the Landowners for a term of 99 years. |-Sky Natural shall
pay the Landowners required premiums, royalties and levies
and pay to the Landowners 3% share of its annual net profit
before tax, from all agricultural projects [-Sky Natural
undertakes within the Project Area. The balance represented
a deposit of approximately HK$269,000 (equivalent to
PGK75,000) for acquisition of logging concession had been
paid by the I-Sky Natural to the Landowners during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

20. BEFT=

21.

APHFEXRERBBRAE T —FFH

RZE——F+tA=Z+N\B ' XARIEE
WHEEIHE M A AN BB E = 75 B Albe
Famous Limited } Peak Sino Limited ( %%
(B )T LB = ([ HE =) -
BIERRERE  ASEREERESZER
EA XN —EmEERT S 10,000,000 T °

R-ZE——F+-F=H AQRIZE2EMH
B /A 7)Century Praise Limited ([ Century
Praise]) B2 E 5 3L B ERESEIBE] B R4
3% ° Century Praise B 5L /B 7E W EH A
B H#E— S —2mREE] £ 10,000,000
HETT ©

WEEEEE R —E——FUA+-H%EK
Mm% &I & BEZ D WENRE - 5F
WEE =T 2 FFIERMITE41 25 ©

MEERETFEIRE

RZZT——FAHH="FH ' I-Sky Natural £2
Vabari Development Corporation Limited
(MZx 1) st —IHPAIH B 86 B R B RMAREK
AR MR BEEEE R H A A ETE B BT
RB M ZFAERMIAR RFARB WE - BRiIB
%8 B % - I-Sky Natural AT = A ¥ E & H
ZAREFE BB NF - ISky
Natural # M 2% £ X AR EE - FarERL
FAEREE - PAKMEEXI-Sky Natural
BFREBBENETHMEREEBME
BREEATALHI 3% o A5 ER7E |-Sky Natural REIE
—E——F+ A=+ —-HIEFERERFKX
RFFEFRE[A) 3 SN 2 BT & 49 269,000 7T
(& 575,000 E4) °
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BE—

22.

118

——Ft+ZA=t+—HIFE

CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets designated at FVTPL

EE R A TEE R

22. TERTE(EEAERATEEB

BRIk EMEE)

2012 2011
—E—_—F

—F——F
HK$'000
FET

HK$’000
FERT

Bamlfkz ERMEE

— Convertible bonds mature over one year

On 26 June 2012 and 4 September 2012, the Company
entered into a subscription agreement and supplemental
subscription agreement, with China Environmental Energy
Investment Limited (“China Environmental”), a company's
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, in subscribing
convertible bonds, with total principal amount of
HK$95,000,000 and interest of 8% per annum, issued by China
Environmental at the subscription price of HK$95,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds"”). The subscription was completed and
the Convertible Bonds were issued to the Company on 12
October 2012. The Convertible Bonds can be converted into
new ordinary shares of China Environmental, limited to 29.9%
of the issued share capital of China Environmental, at any
time within a period of eighteen months following the date of
issue at a conversion price of HK$0.592 per share. The
Company has not converted any Convertible Bonds into new
ordinary share of the China Environmental during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the Convertible
Bonds have been estimated by Roma Appraisal using
valuation techniques based on quoted market prices of the
underlying listed securities.

The Directors are of the opinion that the fair value of the
Convertible Bonds was HK$104,712,000 and a fair value gain
of approximately HK$9,712,000 was recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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104,712 -

RZFE——F A+ AABE=ZZE—=—Fh
BB AAREFEIRREREEERA
ﬁﬂ#ﬁ%%Jﬁ%ﬁ#W“%imnlL
R R R BT RE R - UREREIRR
&uﬁﬁ%ommm%n%% TRERER
95,000,000 7t B & F B8/ 2 Al % (&
H( @R ER]) RNZE——F+A+=
H  REEEETK - BrAiaRESD T
FAQT] - A[RREFAIREITE %R\
& A A fr] B i R B B A% 0.592 8 7T 7
BARBIRIRFT LB - REATBRIRRE
BIIRARZ299% c ARRIREEZE_T—=
F+ A =+—HILFEI RS ER TR
&5 KA BIRIRIT T @A -

R-ZZE——F+-_A=+—08 " Al#EKkEH
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B AGE A EEITHAT -

EERA BET——F+=-A=1+—AH
LEFE - ARRES 2 AFEA104,712,000/8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED

AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
On 12 October 2012, the Group has entered into a call option
deed with an independent third party (the “Call Option
Holder”) in granting a call option (the “Call Option”) for the
Call Option Holder to purchase up to HK$60,000,000 principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds at the exercise price of
120% of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds. The
consideration of the Call Option was HK$4,800,000, which was
recognised as other income in profit or loss (Note 11). The
maturity date of the Call Option was three date prior to the
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds.

As at 12 October 2012 and 31 December 2012, the fair values
of the Call Option has been estimated by Roma Appraisal
using Black-Scholes option pricing model. However, as the
fair values were minimal, the Directors considered that no
such financial instrument should be recognised.

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Listed investments: FTRE -
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ —R&B LT
PR 7E 55
Unlisted investments FEMRE
— Redeemable convertible preference — O] fE B A %
shares B

Notes:

(a) On 27 May 2011 and 2 June 2011, the Group acquired equity interests in
a company listed on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration
of HK$80,190,000.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011,
there had been a significant decline in the market value of the shares of
the investment. The Directors consider that such a decline indicates that
the listed equity investment has been impaired and an impairment loss
of approximately HK$19,278,000 (2011: HK$54,990,000) had been

recognised and charged directly to profit or loss.

fre SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_T—Ft-_A=1—RLFE

22. TERTE(EEAERATEEB
BRVRZEMEE)®)

RZE——F+A+=-H AEEE—ZF
VE=H ([REHEFEAD R L RELD
1 ([RIBHARE ) AT R BB HAE 2205 - AER
BHEEE ARTEE(ANTREBESAS
B2 120%) BB B N & R & % /5 60,000,000/
TZABKRES  REHE2RER
4,800,000 7T+ B R IB =R A E MUk A
(FFEE11) - RIBEIE 2B HAR Ak &S
ZEEER=H -

RZE——F+A+_BR_ZT——F+=
A=+—8 REHEZLAFEIBAES
EERA N — AR HT R e B AR AT o
R ARAFEITEAN  WEZREH
HAERBEBemIA -

23. fHHEEEMEE

2012
—_E—_F

2011
—F——F
HK$'000
FET

HK$’'000
FET

Notes
BtaF

(a) 5,922 25,200
(b) 90,000 -
95,922 25,200

izt

(a) RZFE——FRA=-+tAR=T——F A=
B RNEBEWE KB LT AR ZREE - 2
(& % 80,190,000 % 7T °

REBE=T——F+-A=+—BER=F——F
+TZA=T—HILEE BRHKEZMERZET
B ERERA ARABKERTEMRANEELR
RAE B R R (E 5 18 49 19,278,0008 T (=2
——4F : 54,990,000/ 7T) W B B Bk ©
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

120

On 11 October 2012, Perpetual Master Limited (“Perpetual Master”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into the
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Million
Wealth Capital Investment Limited (“Million Wealth”), which is engaged
in money lending business, in subscribing 90 redeemable convertible
preference shares of HK$1,000,000 each from Million Wealth. The
subscription was completed on 30 November 2012. Perpetual Master
and the sole ordinary shareholder of Million Wealth, which is an
independent third party of the Group, entered into a shareholder
agreement on 30 November 2012 (the “Shareholders’ Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the terms of redeemable

convertible preference shares are as follows:

(i) Perpetual Master is entitled to cumulative dividends of 10% per

annum, compounded annually.

(ii) Perpetual Master has a conversion right to convert the
redeemable convertible preference shares into ordinary shares

at any time at the option of Perpetual Master.

(iii) Perpetual Master should not have any rights to vote at general

meetings of Million Wealth.

(iv) Subject to the consent of all shareholders of Million Wealth, the
redeemable convertible preference shares could be sold or

transferred without restriction upon issuance.

(v) The redeemable convertible preference shares could be
redeemed by Million Wealth subject to the consent of Perpetual

Master or in events of default of Perpetual Master.

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement, major terms are as follows:

(i) Perpetual Master should nominate one out of two persons in
jointly operating the bank accounts of Million Wealth.

(ii) Perpetual Master should be entitled to nominate one, who is
also the chairman, out of three directors of the board of directors
of Million Wealth (the “Board of Million Wealth").

(iii) Perpetual Master should be entitled to nominate one, who is
also the chairman with veto rights, out of three members of the
credit committee of Million Wealth (the “Credit Committee”),
which shall be responsible for, including but not limited to,
performing credit assessments, maintaining loan portfolio and

reducing risk associated with any bad debts and/or default.
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(b)

RZZE—Z—F+A+—H ARAIZEMBEAR
Perpetual Master Limited ([ Perpetual Master])
HEREEEXB2ERAEERAR(ESEA
= DRIVRE B ((RBEHE])  UnEBRIE
2 % 90 A% & % T & 1,000,000 7 7T 2 7] i (5] 7] 32
IR - REZER=-"ZT——F+—A=+H
5EAK * Perpetual Master 28 H &= 2 1 — %@
BRERR(RAEE2BIE=F)N_T—_F
T— A=+ BETZBER B (TR B ©

RIEREGZ - TERARRELERZ GRAT

(i) Perpetual Master A # W HR i 18 & 4 7 &=
10EFTHEZZFTRE °

(ii) Perpetual Master AJ 3 1% pA ({7 B ] 1% 5
HRE S T RE Bl TR AR B R AR AR A AR o

(iii) Perpetual Master R B £ 8| & 2 R R
REHRR

vy RKEBEAEZERRFEE  AJERLAR
REBERT AIHEXEREMERIT LR
EAIBR A ©

(v) A Perpetual Master[@l & =k Perpetual
Master lEE N EH 2 BRT - AIFE[E A
BRREBLERTBAESRIZER -

RIRBR AR - ERHEROT ¢

0] BEABZHRITEFAMEALTHRE
38+ Hh—Z fEfPerpetual MasteriZ 4 °
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) (Continued)
As at 31 December 2012, Perpetual Master:

(i) has not yet nominated any person in the operation of the bank

accounts of Million Wealth;

(ii) has not yet nominated any directors on the Board of Million
Wealth; and

(iii) has nominated Mr. Huang Chuan Fu (“Mr. Huang”), the
executive director of the Company, as chairman in the Credit
Committee. Mr. Huang is only responsible for the loan
assessment which is then submitted to the Board of Million

Wealth for approval.

The Directors consider that the Group has neither control nor significant
influence over Million Wealth as they have not actively participated in
the operation and policy-making process of Million Wealth. Therefore,
the investment in the redeemable convertible preference shares is
treated as available-for-sales financial asset as a long term investment.
The Directors consider that there is no recoverability problem and no

impairment is considered necessary.
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(b)

(#)
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=
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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24. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables

The term of loans entered with customers ranges within one
year. And after monitoring assessment and further
creditworthiness analysis on the debtors, certain loans have
been further extended for not more than one year. All loan
and interest receivables are denominated in HK$. The loan
receivables carry fixed interest ranging from 8% to 48% (2011:
8% to 48%) per annum. Included in the carrying amounts of
loan and interest receivables as at 31 December 2012 is
accumulated impairment loss of HK$44,060,000 (2011:
HK$109,483,000). An aging analysis of the loan and interest
receivables net of accumulated impairment loss at the end of
the reporting period, based on the loan agreement
commencement date and the date of interest incurred

respectively, is as follows:

0-30 days 0-30H
31-90 days 31-90H
91-180 days 91-180 H
181-365 days 181-365 H
Over 365 days 365 B A E

122  Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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24. ERERKFE

2012 2011
—E—_F

—EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T

127,646 273,221

HREIIV ZERFHANT—FNA - BEH
NETERFHRE—SEAINE BT
BEREE—FPERETZN—F - FTERYK
BEREFEHABTTIIE - BKERZ BT
FEMRNF8UEI8%(ZB——F : 8% E
48%) c R—E——_F+_A=+—HZE
WEREFEREEE G AR RERIE
44,060,000 7t ( — & — — 4 : 109,483,000
BIT) o IRIBE R B R BB R F B EE
HERD BIGTE - Rk BRI 2R EE
Bz REKEF R BERSITOT

2012 2011
—B-—=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
(Restated)

(&%)

744 6,908
123,606 65,754
126 12,853

212 187,706
2,958 -
127,646 273,221
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24. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24.

Set out below is an analysis of loan and interest receivables

that are past due but not impaired:

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_ZT——F1+-A=1+—HIEFE
EBWERRAE (@)

E@fEEREZEBEERRFESTH
T e

1-30 days 1-30 A
31-90 days 31-90H
91-180 days 91-180 A
181-365 days 181-365 H
Over 365 days 365 B A E

Note: As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the amounts which are past due but
not impaired are not subject to any collateral. As subsequent settlement
is noted, the Directors considered that no impairment is necessary for

these overdue debtors.

The movements in accumulated impairment of loan and

interest receivables are as follows:

2012 2011
—B——Ff —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT
226 16,978

3,304 417

109 611

215 101

40 _

3,894 18,107

Kiat: R-2——FR - ZT——F+_A=+—H" B
BHVE AR E < RIB P ZAEFHEIRR I - ZEFOE
BHEREFER EFRR #ARRFAEY
FEUEIRIEHRUE -

EREREN S 2 REREZ ST

2012 2011
—g--% —2——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FBT
109,483 -
(83,717) -

18,294 145,171
- (35,688)

44,060 109,483

At 1 January m—H—8

Reversal of impairment loss on loan and FEW & R A 2R A
interest receivables EERO

Impairment loss recognised on loan and EREREWER TS
interest receivables DERIEN R

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHMEAA]

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H

Included in the above impairment loss recognised at 31
December 2012 was individually impaired loan and interest
receivables with a carrying amount of HK$44,064,000 (2011:
HK$315,536,000) before impairment which have been in
financial difficulties.

rR =T+ _A=+—HE®AZ
BEEEER AT BE #2875 E R ERE
WEREME  ERXBENZEEHEBES
44,064,000 7% 75( —F —— % : 315,536,000
BIT) e

APEEEERARAT —T——FF% 123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

B PRk

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—

24.

25.

124

——f+-A=t—HLFE
LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24.

As at 31 December 2012, loan and interest receivables
amounting to approximately HK$49,779,000 (2011:
HK$222,411,000) were subject to collateral for listed shares
amounting to approximately HK$36,960,000 (2011: listed
shares amounting to HK$188,385,000).

As at 31 December 2012, loan and interest receivables
amounting to approximately HK$44,374,000 (2011: Nil) were
subsequently subject to collaterals of promissory note issued
by a listed company in Hong Kong and frozen cash of that
debtor amounting to approximately HK$25,000,000 and
HK$44,606,000 respectively (2011: Nil).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25.

Trade receivables FE U AR R

Prepayments TERN /I

Other receivables (Note) H fib e W GRIE (M 7E)

Total trade and other receivables FHQEE K N L At & U2
FIREEE

Note: As at 31 December 2012, included in other receivables are interest
receivables of approximately HK$1,687,000 from the Convertible Bonds
issued by China Environmental and other receivables of approximately
HK$4,000,000 from the Call Option Holder regarding the consideration
of the Call Option of the Convertible Bonds. The Directors consider that
no impairment is recognised as they are not yet overdue as at 31
December 2012.

As at 31 December 2011, included in other receivables are other
receivables of approximately HK$4,000,000 regarding the consideration
from Favor Way Investments Limited (“Favor Way") in relation to the
disposal of equity interest in Delta Wealth Finance Limited (“Delta
Wealth"). The Directors consider that no impairment was recognised as

they were not yet overdue as at 31 December 2011.
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EWETA&*UILA<F§>
RZE-—ZF+_A=Z+—8B" &

49,779,0007% 7t ( = & — — £ : 222,411,000
BIL) 2 FEUE SRR A B A 49 36,960,000 7%
o2 Emgn (ZZF ——4 : 188,385,000 %
TLZ LT RAD ) (EE ARG o

NR—ZE—=F+=-_A=+—H"' &
443740008 (ZF——F : ) ZEKE
KK A ECBE 18 DA 9 Bl 49 25,000,000 7% 7T K&
44,606,000 L2 —KE B LA RFTET
AR EZEBRRZEBAZRER S (ZF——
F E)EEHSR o

PR LAY B SRR e L At P LUK
2012
—E—_—F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHERT TR

173 311

1,301 705

7,246 5,272

8,547 5,977

8,720 6,288

Kt : RZB—ZF+ZA=+—8 ' EtbEKFER

FER A BERIRFT AT AT AR E 5 2 FEUF B 4Y
1,687,000 7 7T R 3t AT R AR (& 55 2 RE A Em
R —BRBHERSEAZEMERKIELD
4,000,000 7T - EBERA - HRNARARER=Z
——E+ZA=t—BEAAH  RAEEERR
(=

RZZT——F+-A=+—H HtEKZKEE
ERHEEEREEEERABEESHED
fi% 7S 4% 25 M 9% & Favor Way Investments Limited
([Favor Way ) BT~ (X B 2 £ ftb /& Y 5k 1B 49
4,000,000 7T - EFRR  HRAARIER=ZZ
——F+ZA=+—BRAREBH - W ERERR
{I=10



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group allowed a
credit period in the range from 30 to 90 days (2011: 30 to 90
days) to its debtors. An aging analysis of the trade receivables
net of accumulated impairment loss at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 90 days 90BN

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

There was no trade receivable balance as at 31 December
2012 and 2011 which was past due for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss at the end of both reporting
periods.

In determining the recoverability of a trade or other
receivable, the Group considers any change in credit quality
of the trade and other receivables from the date credit was
initially granted up to the reporting date. In view of the good
settlement history from those debtors of the Group, the
Directors considered that there is no impairment loss
recognised for the year. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

REH N ARRME

25.

REPFBEERBRAR —T— —FFH

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

JE Uit BR = B L th P U R IE ()
HE-_T——HF+-_fA=+—HItFEE &K
SEMEBEBARENTIENH(ZE
——F :30E90H) ZEEH - REEEH
HiETE - RS HIRMBR REREBEZE
WEBR RERBR DATAO T

2012
—E——F

2011
—F——F
HK$'000
FHBTT

HK$'000
FET

173 311

b 42 8 71| ok FE BE AR AR 2 R (B 2 B U BR FR BR e
DITEAT :

2012
—E—_fF

HK$’'000
FTERT

HK$'000
TR

173 311

R-B——HR-_F——F+-HA=1—
B SR O 80 AN 52 B 7 7 18 3 o5 B R AT
RetiRR EE R R R 2 RAR AR o

8 7E MR R R B EL b B W SR TR 2 AT W (B 1
B AEEZEEERAEREEZAEER
SR ERURR R ERIAEEE X
LB EMAEE - ERARE ZEHANK
R EFRARFALEERREE
18 o NEBWE A FHERTT A EMERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HLLFE

26. INVESTMENT HELD FOR TRADING 26. HEXRBIRE
2012 2011
—R——-—F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Listed securities S
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LT ZRAEH 15,050 13,920
The fair values of the above listed securities are determined Lt ETES 2 A E IR FTFT 5
based on the quoted market bid prices available at the Stock BABERE -
Exchange.
27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSET 27. TTEEWMEE
The movement of the derivative financial assets for the years MTESRMEECFNEFHNT -

was set out below:

Listed bonus

warrant on

equity security

listed in

Put option Hong Kong
sELH

BRAES 2

LWALR
o iR ARER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TR
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(K7et(a) (KteE b))

At 1 January 2011 RZZE—F—F—H 8,410 = 8,410
Charged to profit or loss BEHMER (4,444) 4,000 (444)
Exercise of put option (Note 42) T Rh ERHE (75t 42) (3,966) = (3,966)
At 31 December 2011 and R—ZE—&+=-A=+—H

1 January 2012 rE=—E——F—HfF—H - 4,000 4,000
Charged to profit or loss Biam ik - (4,000) (4,000)
At 31 December 2012 NR-E——-—E+-A=+-—H - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSET (Continued)

28.

Notes:

(a)

On 24 September 2010, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire Delta Wealth, pursuant to which the Group
possessed the right to exercise the put option at any time during the
exercisable period in respect of acquiring back all of the 510,000 shares
of Delta Wealth by the vendor. This represented 51% of the entire
issued share capital of Delta Wealth by the vendor as at completion
date.

On 13 October 2011, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose Delta Wealth, pursuant to which the Group
exercised the put option to require Favor Way, the non-controlling
shareholder of Delta Wealth, to acquire back all of the 510,000 shares of
Delta Wealth.

On 18 August 2011, the Group was granted 400,000,000 listed warrants
issued by a company listed on the Stock Exchange at nil consideration.
The fair value at 31 December 2011 was determined based on the
closing market price as at that date. Each warrant confers the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the issuer at a subscription price of
HK$0.03. The warrants were expired and lapsed on 21 August 2012.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging
from 0.01% to 0.5% (2011: 0.01% to 0.5%) per annum for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks

with no recent history of default.

The Group's bank balances and cash that are denominated in

currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant

group entities are as follows:

RMB

AR

27.

28.

REPFBEERBRAR —T— —FFH

- + 23
fre SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE
MESHEE®

@ RIZE-—ZFAA-TWAE  AEERKEEE
BMEFNLESE B Bt AREEERTED
AERERITEREHE  EXELHZHELD
510,000 1 F BRI =R - HERESRTK H
FiF B amE 2 e HITIRAR 2 51%

—E——F+A+=0 AEERLEAR TR
VEEWE Bt AREITERASHES
OB E BB 2 FE 12 AR B% IR Favor Way 7& £1 B [2]
510,000 BB BB E B 1D °

R==F
ERIAL

b) RZF——FN\ATNA TEEUEETAE
— KB A FT_E T A B4 T 400,000,000 15 £ ERAR
BE - RZE——F+-_RA=+—BZAFED
BERZ W EEE - S BEREES M HERN
FRBECIEB TR —MBEITALER - R
BEFER _F——F/\A_t+—BRHRRK -

RITEKRERS
HE_T——H#+_A=+—HItFE
THEBIENT00IER0SE( T ——F
0.01EZE05E) 2RITHHFEFEEE °

517 4584 T 7 P B0 A 4 R 2080 2 7
17 o

AEBEAEEEEERINGEERUINEE
BEZRITHEBRIRSMOT

2012
—_E—_F

2011
—F——F
HK$'000
FET

HK$’'000
FET

421 394
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HLLFE

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. Hith BN RERESEH
2012 2011
—F--F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Other payables HoAth FE T FRIR 6 74
Accrued expenses TR X 1,874 679
Receipt in advance T KRIE 3 500
1,883 1,253
30. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 30. ENESEMIEA
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest free and JENEERIBAEIRE - T B RERENK
repayable on demand. &g -
31. NOTE PAYABLE AND INTEREST PAYABLE 31. EREEREMFIR
On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the Acquisition. Part RZZBE-——FMOA+ZB  XEETKEE
of the consideration is satisfied by issuing 10% promissory =I5 o o RELAEITAEEE A 195,000,000
notes in the principal sum of HK$195,000,000 (the “Promissory BT ZAEALEE (A KEEE])10% 27 E
Notes”) (Note 41). The maturity date of the Promissory Notes i (HF3E41) - AR EE ZBHR 2B %TH
is 15 months from the date of issuance. During the year B 15EA - BE_F——F+=H
ended 31 December 2012, the Group has early redeemed =T HIEFE FAEEERFERARLE
HK$185,000,000 of the Promissory Notes. & E 185,000,000 78 7T °
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

BORROWINGS 32. €&
2012 2011
—E2E——F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Current BPEA
Other borrowings — unsecured Hifg g — miEH = 10,000
Carrying amounts repayable: BT ERZRAE :
On demand or within one year BERE—FA - 10,000
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B IIRRBEEETZ
under current liabilities —FRNEIEFIE = (10,000)

Other borrowings represented borrowings from an
independent third party.

Maturity

date
Z|HH

Fixed rate unsecured other borrowings
denominated in HK$:

HsEEEHABTEE :

HK$ loan of HK$10,000,000 3 May 2012

7 70 B 7% 10,000,000 7 7T —E——4F
AHA=H

DEFERRED TAXATION

No deferred tax asset attributable to the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses of the Group have been
recognised for both years due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unexpired estimated tax losses available for off-setting
future taxable profits and deductible temporary differences of
approximately HK$15,466,000 (2011: HK$16,258,000) and
HK$78,487,000 (2011: HK$78,197,000) respectively.

HittEERREBUFE=Z2EE -

Carrying amounts
FREE
Effective
interest rate 2012 2011
EBRE —F-=F 2 —F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FABT

10% - 10,000

33. IEERIE
AR EETET R R H - R (EEE &R
INER B 2 AT OB R A R M B TE S R R
EFRTEEE - RIEHR - NEEH AL
HZ (At RIEESER ARIRESE S RIN A
15,466,000,8 70 (=& ——4F : 16,258,000/
7T) } 78,487,000 7T (ZF——4F : 78,197,000
PEIT) 2 AR R FERR B Al R AT HI R BT s 2= 58 o

ATREEERARAT —2——FFF 129
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34.

130

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

CONVERTIBLE NOTE A

On 19 October 2010, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Favor Way, for the acquisition of
Delta Wealth. Pursuant to the said sale and purchase
agreement, the Company issued to Favor Way convertible
notes (the “Convertible Note A”) at a nominal value of
HK$48,000,000.

On 13 October 2011, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Favor Way for the disposal of Delta
Wealth. Pursuant to the said sale and purchase agreement,
Favor Way has conditionally agreed to acquire Delta Wealth
at the consideration of HK$52,000,000, which included
HK$4,000,000 cash consideration and the cancellation of the
Convertible Note A with principal amount of HK$48,000,000
which was issued to Favor Way on 19 October 2010. The
transaction was completed on 22 December 2011 and the
Convertible Note A was cancelled on the same day.

The principal terms of the Convertible Note A were as follows:

The Convertible Note A were denominated in HK$. The
Convertible Note A entitled the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the date
of issue of the Convertible Note A and its maturity date on 31
December 2011 at initial conversion price of HK$0.16 per
share. If the Convertible Note A had not been converted, it
would be redeemed on 31 December 2011 at nominal value.
The Convertible Note A did not carry interest on the principal
amount.

The Convertible Note A, which has been designated at
FVTPL, was fairly valued by the Directors with reference to a
valuation report issued by AVISTA Valuation Advisory Limited,
an independent qualified valuer not connected to the Group.
The change in fair value of the Convertible Note A of
approximately HK$5,078,000 had been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2011.
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34. ARAREE

AR EEA

RZZE—ZFF+A+NAB ' KA HEFavor
Way sl B E S A SmE - RIE il
E B W& ' AR A [ Favor Way 2 1T H 1B
48,000,000 7T 2 Al AR =15 ([ AT 2R = 18
Al) e

R-ZZT—FF+HA+=8 ' ~NAFEFavor
Way sl B E BN EEESRE o RIK it
B B W% ' Favor Way B &4 R 2 BB &
Bt = R {& A&52000000% v H &
4,000,0008 7T &I 2 KB  #2 T 48,000,000
BTABERFHEHARTR_E—ZFF+A
+ 1. A 347 F Favor Way & Al 2 iR ZE & AR
I RERFER=ZZE—F+=A
ZTZHEK  MABRREEATERER
FTEH o

AMRRIBAZ T RHEFRMT

AMERRIEAETTIIE - AT RRRIEAR
FTRAEABNRABRRERAZTAHEE
HA - ——F+ - A=+— AHREMK
RN LAREER0I6ET  HHELRR
ARB)EBE - WA RERRIBEAREL K -
AR T ——F+-_A=+—B&RRHEA
BB o ATMREBRAVERRSEETE -

EEREBEAFEEBEBRIK I RKRTZR
ATVHEEZ2ZEAEENBMELBIA
B AEMEBTEFEABRARMED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)
CONVERTIBLE NOTE A (Continued)
The assumptions adopted for the valuation of the Convertible
Note A were as follows:

()

The estimation of risk free rate has made reference to
the yield of Exchange Fund Bill with same duration as
the Convertible Note A;

The estimation of volatility for the underlying share price
has considered the historical price movements of those
companies engaged in relatively to similar industry; and

The discount rate was arrived at based on the
Company’s credit rating and select comparable
corporate bonds with similar maturity and credit risk to
derive the range of comparable yield to maturity as of
date of valuation and the median range has been
adopted.

The fair value of the Convertible Note A was calculated using

the binomial model. Major parameter adopted in the

calculation of the fair value are summarised below into the

model was as follow:

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

34, ITEARERE (&)
ARREEA(E)
WATHIR I8 AT B AT 2 BT -

(1)

BRBRMED2EZEFHEJBERRE
AR ZSMNE B & R IR W et RAEFT -

MR R RE R I8 < R E B B E AL
TEZRRIZBEBRES &

RRBRERDREBEARRZEEFRLA
BELUZIMBR M EERR TR
BUBARIGERMEIE  MEHEE
MEBZAELREI MK mEE - 5t
BRI EE -

TRBERAZ A FEDRA = HRR
% o SHEATEMRAZ EBRA 2B
o

Stock price

Exercise price
Risk free-rate
Discount rate
Expected life

B fE
1IfE(E
R B I R
gk

BHIFH

The movement of the Convertible Note A for the year was set
out below:

HK$'000
TAT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2011
Fair value change in profit or loss
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 42)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2011

N—=

None of the Convertible Note A had been converted into
ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2011.

N

22.12.2011 31.12.2010
—B2——F —E2-2F
= +=A=+—H
HK$0.024 7 7T HK$0.06 7 7T
HK$0.274 7% 7T HK$0.16 77T
0.07% 0.34%

11.45% 12.00%

10 days H 1 year 5

AHMBRRBEAZFREESMT

R-_ZE——F—F—BzEEE
A E 1 2 A HEE )
HE—KWBA R (At42)

42,922
5,078
(48,000)

F+-_A=+—HZzEAE —

BE-E——F+-A=1—ALFE #
AT RRERA R AR A LB -

REPFBEERBRAR —T— —FFH
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34.

132

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

CONVERTIBLE NOTES B AND C

On 16 May 2011, the Company issued 6% convertible notes
(the “Convertible Note B"”) to several independent third
parties in the aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000.
The initial conversion price was HK$0.58. On 18 May 2011, the
conversion price was adjusted to HK$0.082 as a result of the
rights issue as set out in Note 35(e). The Convertible Note B
in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 were fully
converted into 1,219,512,192 ordinary shares of the Company
at HK$0.025 on 18 May 2011.

The effective interest rate of the liability component was
9.69%.

The principal terms of Convertible Note B were as follows:

The maturity date of Convertible Note B was 18 months from
the date of issue. The conversion rights attaching to
Convertible Note B could be exercised at any time up to the
fifth day before the maturity of Convertible Note B.
Convertible Note B included an early redemption option of
which the Company could redeem whole or part of the
outstanding Convertible Note B at an amount equal to 100%
of the principal amount at any time and from time to time at
the option of the Company prior to the maturity date.

On 29 November 2011, the Company issued 2% convertible
notes (the “Convertible Note C”) to several independent
third parties in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$89,600,000. The initial conversion price was HK$0.028. The
Convertible Note C in the principal amount of HK$89,600,000
were fully converted into 3,200,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$0.025 on 29 November 2011.

The effective interest rate of the liability component was
22.68%.

The principal terms of the Convertible Note C were as follows:

The maturity date of Convertible Note C was 18 months from
the date of issue. The conversion rights attaching to
Convertible Note C could be exercised at any time up to the
fifth day before the maturity of Convertible Note C.
Convertible Note C included an early redemption option of
which the Company can redeem whole or part of the
outstanding Convertible Note C at an amount equal to 100%
of the principal amount at any time and from time to time at
the option of the Company prior to the maturity date of
Convertible Note C.
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34, ITEARERE (&)

ABRBREEBRC
RZZE—FRHA+A ' AREAZEE
S EB = BT B R 6% A& 48 EA 100,000,000
B2 TR EE ([T R EEB]) - M1
HER0S8BIL - R=E——FAA+N
H - 53 (E F M e 35(e) A& ik m A 2 &
0.082 7% JT ° 7~ < 8 /& 100,000,0007%8 7T 2 7]
BRREEBR T ——F A A +/\H1%0.025
BT 51,219,512,192 B AN A 5] i@
% °

BEIDZERMER9.69% °

AR IR B 2 EEEFAT ¢

AR EEB 2 BB A AT B B 181E
H o AR AR A5 B Mt 75 2 30 R AT 0 T 4R A
SEBRHBE 2R FE I ABER T AT o A
BEEEBES —HREFEOEEE  AQ
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B AHMARSRIEB -

R_T——F+—A=-1+NA ARFAAZ%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

CONVERTIBLE NOTES B AND C (Continued)

Both the Convertible Note B and Convertible Note C
contained three components: liability component, equity
component and derivative component.

The Company’s early redemption option embedded in both
the Convertible Note B and Convertible Note C was
accounted for as “Derivative financial assets” and was
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

The derivative financial assets of Convertible Note B and
Convertible Note C were fairly valued by the Directors with
reference to a valuation report issued by BMI Appraisal
Limited, an independent qualified valuer not connected to
the Group.

The fair value of the derivative financial assets of Convertible
Note B and Convertible Note C were calculated using the
binomial model. Major parameter adopted in the calculation
of the fair value are summarised below into the model was as
follow:

Stock price (&

Exercise price 1B
Risk-free rate #  Ben ) =
Expected volatility LA
Expected dividend yield TE B AR B A
Expected life T8 B £ HA

—=——F
AA+H

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

34, ITEARERE (&)

TERBRREEBRC ()
AR RIEB KA RECH R =EF D
AR BERD - BmE ) ROTET AR

o

AMRREBRABRERECHAEEZAR
ARFBOEEEDATEEREE ] T
AR LRAFEAFE  MAFEZESHA
RIB R ©

AMRREBRABRERECZITESRME
ERER2EZRAEENBHEZBVEE
RiGEMHNARFEERATEL 2 HE
HERFEE-

AMRREB LA BRERECZITESRME
ERAFEIEA-ZBRRAGFE - 8 AFE
Rimz T2EA2EBINOT

Convertible

Convertible Note B Note C

AJRKREEB REREC

16 May 18 May 29 November
2011 2011 2011

—=E——fF —E——fF
EFA+NAR +—A=1hH

HK$0.320/7C  HK$0.12277C  HK$0.034 7T
HK$0.580787  HK$0.082/& T  HK$0.028 % 7T

0.34% 0.35% 0.21%
197.07% 203.46% 219.90%
0% 0% 0%

18 months @ H 18 months{&A 18 months {& A
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34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)
CONVERTIBLE NOTES B AND C (Continued)
The assumptions adopted for the valuation of the Convertible
Note B and Convertible Note C were as follows:

(1)  The estimation of risk free rate has made reference to
the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with same
duration as the Convertible Notes B and C;

(2)  The expected volatility of the underlying security of the
redemption option was determined based on the
historical volatility of the share prices of the Company;
and

(3)  The expected dividend yield of the underlying security
of the redemption option was determined based on the
historical dividend payment record of the Company.

The movements of the liability, equity and derivatives
components of Convertible Note B and Convertible Note C

for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out below:

Convertible Note B

34. AIRREE (&)
ABREEBRC(E)
WA AR 48 B & AT R AR 22 48 C i 1T B AT
Rz BRI

(1) \EEBRANXTI2EFHETRRERE
BRCHRZEFBINEEASRBWGER
fl&t -

(2 EREEEBETHAFEHKEIZEARD
RIREZELRIRERTE + &

) EEEETEZF BHREKETR
AR FVBER BRI FCEREEE ©

BE-—F——F+-A=+—AIEE @
RBRERBRTARERCZAMN - EHR
PrETABHRBMT -

RREEB

Derivative
financial

Liability asset Equity Total
T

a8 TREE i st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAT TAT

96,632 (34,127) 37,495 100,000
(1,801) - (699) (2,500)
- (24,815) - (24,815)
(94,848) 58,942 (36,796) (72,702)
50 - - 50

(33) - = (33)

At 1 January 2011 R-_Z—%—H—H
Issued during the year FNET
Transaction costs R
Change in fair value NTHEE S
Conversion to shares during EREBAERKN
the year
Imputed interest expense HER B
Interest paid BERAE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——4
+ZA=+—H
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34. IRRER (@)

ABREEBRC(E)
EKREEC

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)
CONVERTIBLE NOTES B AND C (Continued)
Convertible Note C

Derivative
financial

Liability asset Equity Total
THE

af THEE i At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TEx TAT

At 1 January 2011 RZZE—4%—H—H -

FRET 68,242 (34,709) 56,067 89,600

Issued during the year
Transaction costs RS (1,230) = (1,010) (2,240)
Conversion to shares during FRABRAERH
the year (67,012) 34,709 (55,057) (87,360)
At 31 December 2011 RZT——%F
+-A=+—8 - = = =
CONVERTIBLE NOTE D ARBREED

On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the Acquisition.
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered into
with the Vendors, the total consideration for the Acquisition
of HK$310,000,000 was satisfied as to (i) HK$33,000,000 by the
issue of the convertible bonds, which carried no interest, in
the principal amount of HK$33,000,000 with conversion price
of HK$0.087 (the “Convertible Note D"); (i) HK$82,000,000 in
cash; and (i) HK$195,000,000 by the issue of the Promissory
Notes. The Convertible Note D in the principal amount of
HK$33,000,000 was fully converted into 379,310,344 ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.01 on 12 April 2012.

The principal terms of the Convertible Note D were as
follows:

The maturity date of Convertible Note D was the date
immediately following one year after the first issue of the
Convertible Note D (the “Note Maturity Date"”). The holders
of the Convertible Note D had the rights to convert the
Convertible Note D, in whole or in part into the conversion
shares, at any time from the day immediately following the
issue of the Convertible Note D, up to the day immediately
prior to the Note Maturity Date.

R-BE——FWA+=—H  AEERRIKE
EIH o RIBEE STV EE e - WES
JH 7 #8 X & 310,000,000 7% 7T J5 LA T~ 51 77 =X,
B () A £ B 5 IRE0.087 B LT
58 /4 33,000,000 7% 7T 2 7] # A% = 4% ([ AT 34
REZ=HED]) » LAfEF33,000,0007% 7t B K
F B (i) LAZR £ {815 82,000,000 8 7T : &
(m)%ﬂ%%ﬁfi LA{E15£195,000,00058 7T ©
7N 4> %8 /4 33,000,000 T Z AT AR Z R DR
—ZE—_—FMA+_HIR0.01 BRI R
#379,310,344 IR AN R 7] A% o

AHMERED 2 TEEHKAT

AHMEEED 2R A RERETABERE
BEDER—F2H(ERIHAL) - AHAKRE
BEDRAAREAZTIRREEZEDERRE
ZERFRRIEAAT— B FHMBER § AR
BRIED 2 BB SR IR
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34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

CONVERTIBLE NOTE D (Continued)

The Company was entitled at its sole discretion to redeem
any of the Convertible Note D remaining outstanding at par
at any time from the date of issue on 12 April 2012 and up to
and including the date falling seven days immediately before
the Note Maturity Date.

Any of the Convertible Note D remaining outstanding at the
Note Maturity Date must be mandatorily converted into
conversion shares.

The Convertible Note D contained two components: equity
component and derivative component.

The Company's early redemption option embedded in the
Convertible Note D was accounted for as a “derivative
financial asset” and was measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The derivative financial asset of Convertible Note D was fairly
valued by the Directors with reference to a valuation report
issued by Roma Appraisals.

The fair value of the derivative financial asset of Convertible
Note D was calculated using the binomial model. Major
parameter adopted in the calculation of the fair value are
summarised below:

Stock price I &
Exercise price 1T1E(E
Risk-free rate 2 B ) =
Expected volatility T8 B R
Expected life T8 B £F B

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

34, ITEARERE (&)

AEBRREED (5)

AEEM 2RRERETRH _T——F0
AT REEERFERIHMANFELR(E2HE
E0) L AEERREEREC S TR TR
ZEFABRBERERED ©

REEIHB AR BZ E AR T AT RRER
IR DUAERGI IR A I]AD -

AR EED MM ER AKX : #EamEo K
TTETAED -

AMREBEDMEEZARNEIREEEREE
BIOATTESREE ] KAARK  X&RA
FERE - MATEZBDENERER -

ARRRBEDZITESREEREETLER
FHEBL 2 AERE QA FHEE -

HRREED 2 HTELREEATETIRA
“HEERGE  SFEAFERA T TERE
BEFNT -

Convertible Note D
AR EED
12 April 2012

—_E—__fF
mMA+=H

HK$33,000,000 % 7T
HK$33,000,000 7% 7T
0.16%

4.768%

0.984 year %
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34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 34. AIRREE (&)
CONVERTIBLE NOTE D (Continued) ARREED (&)
The assumptions adopted for the valuation of the Convertible AR ERDEITHEFTRA 2 RELAT

Note D are as follows:

(1) The estimation of risk-free rate has made reference to (1) ERBFKTI2EFHEARKEEE
the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with same DRz & B INEE S Z B WA T
duration as the Convertible Note D; &t

(2)  The expected volatility for the underlying security of the 2 BEREEREETHEBEESAHRE
redemption option was determined based on the THEARRIREZ B LRBETE : &
historical volatility of the share prices of the Company;
and

(3) The expected dividend yield of the underlying security () EBHEERETHEIZS TEHRKRE
of the redemption option was determined based on the Wegs THIRZN A Bl R 1 IR BRI A0 85 e
historical dividend payment record of the Company. iE °

The movements of the equity and derivatives components of IANAE R AT IR RIE D B #m ROTET

Convertible Note D for the year are set out below: BEANERN EE

Derivative
financial asset Equity Total
fTEemMEE R met
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET

At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H = = =

Issued during the year FNET (648) 29,748 29,100

Conversion to shares during the year A 3,32 AR D 648 (29,748) (29,100)

At 31 December 2012 R=-FB——-—E+=-H=+—H - - -
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35. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 January 2011

Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each

Share consolidation (Note a)
Capital reorganisation (Note c)

At 31 December 2011

Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each

Share consolidation (Note )
Capital reduction (Note g)
Capital reorganisation (Note g)
Share consolidation (Note i)

At 31 December 2012

Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2011

Share consolidation (Note a)

Issue of right shares (Note b)

Issue of shares (Note d)

Issue of shares upon conversion
of convertible notes (Note e)

At 31 December 2011
Share consolidation (Note f)
Capital reduction (Note g)
Issue of shares upon conversion
of convertible notes (Note h)
Share consolidation (Note i)
Issue of right shares (Note )
Issue of bonus shares (Note j)

At 31 December 2012

35. A&

BE

R=—Z——%—F—H
FREE0.001/E T2 @K

W& Bt (ffza)

BRAEA (Hfitc)

“T——F+-A=+—H
lHXETﬁ 0.025/8 T2 LBk
B &8t (HzEf)

IRABUR (ff7Eg)
WAEA (fiiFg)
W& BF (B2 i)

R-E-—-—F+=-A=t—H
SREME0.SETZEER

BRETRERE:

RZE—F—H—H
Rin &bt (fita)
BATHEBRR R (A2Eb)

BIIRAD (HaFd)

SR R B TR D
(Hiate)

P GHWEO
BB (Hf7Eg)
AR E R ETRA
(ft:Eh)
D& 0F (B
BITHRARD (M)
BITHIR (H172))

R-ZE-—-F+=-A=1+—H
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Par value

HiE

HK$
BT

0.001
N/AE
0.025

0.025
N/ANER
0.01

0.01
N/ANE

0.08

0.001
N/ANER
0.025
0.025

0.025

0.025
N/AE
0.01

0.01
N/A i A
0.08
0.08

0.08

Number of
shares
RAHE
‘000

i

Amount
]
HK$'000
TAT

200,000,000 200,000
(192,000,000) -
8,000,000 200,000
16,000,000 400,000
(14,400,000) =
- (384,000)
38,400,000 384,000
(35,000,000) -
5,000,000 400,000
1,926,819 1,927
(1,849,747) -
2,774,183 69,355
2,632,634 65,815
4,419,512 110,488
9,903,401 247,585
(8,913,061) -
- (237,682)

379,310 3,793
(1,198,444) -
342,413 27,393
1,712,063 136,965
2,225,682 178,054
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 35. A& (#)

Notes: Hiat -

a. As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 20 December 2010, a a. BMAAR AR -—T—ZEFF+_A-THZE
share consolidation on the basis that every 25 issued and unissued FHPIRER - H AR BIRRA A & 25 i = AR (2.0.001
shares of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of the Company had been BT B BT RARBITRG &0/ —REME0.025
consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.025 each with BLZEHRMDZELETRHEH B=F
effective from 10 January 2011. Prior to the date of such share ——F—AtBRER - RROEHBHZE
consolidation, there were 1,926,819,448 issued shares, after such share ITIAD BB 51,926,819,448 0% - AR D& OF
consolidation, the number of issued shares had changed to 77,072,777. % 81&77,072,777 B °

b. On 13 April 2011, the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) b. RZE——FMA+T=H " AARRR(KRRE]
approved by way of poll of the rights issue on the basis of thirty rights AR AR BUR SRR AR 7 TUBLE AR R B B AR 4L AR AR
shares for every one share held on the record date of 26 April 2011 at a H0.08 BTN AT ——FMNA=+X
subscription price of HK$0.08 per rights share. The rights issue became HEEA — ARG B2 = T IRERAR (D 2
unconditional on 18 May 2011. 2,774,183,310 rights shares with the par THER - IR T ——FA A T N\BKAERK
value of HK$0.025 each were allotted and issued on 18 May 2011 and 4 < 2,774,183 310 x B AR I (B 0.025 8 7T 2 AR IR
net proceeds of approximately HK$215,389,000 were raised. Details of MER=ZT——FREAT/\BEERET &F
the rights issue were set out in the circular of the Company dated 28 FT 15 B F 8849 215,389,000 78 7T © AR FEBER
March 2011. AARBBHA-T——F=A=+/\BZ@EK -

c. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company'’s special c. BER=ZF——F+—A=+HARITZARR
general meeting held on 24 November 2011, the Company's authorised BRREFHIASHBBEBAZER EBER
share capital was increased to HK$400,000,000 divided into 8,000,000,000 A% & A {8 0.025 % T 2 E ik » #%
16,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each by the creation of N A A Z A TE R AN 38 2 400,000,000 7T+ 9 A
8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each. 16,000,000,000 A% & AR 1 {E 0.025 8 Tt < & 38R ©

d. On 21 January 2011, the Company entered into a placing agreement d. RZZE——F—A=+—H ARAHEREESRE
with a placing agent to place 15,400,000 new ordinary shares with the FIMELE i - REREERM0.73 BT B
par value of HK$0.025 each at a price of HK$0.73 per placing share. B¢ & 15,400,000 % & A% T {E.0.025% 7T 2 #1 & @
Furthermore, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement iR o Btoh  RAREREERER_-T——F—H
with the placing agent on 24 January 2011, pursuant to which the “+HMBRI AR RS Bt BEEEEEITA
placing price had been revised to HK$0.74 per placing share. Net BREERH 0748 T - REESMERIAFR
proceeds of approximately HK$11,030,000 were raised and used as #711,030,000/8 7T + BIEAEB 2 —BEERE
general corporate and working capital of the Group and/or for the BES R REREBRREREZA - LiliRHD
future development of the Group. Such placing of shares was REER=ZE——F—A=+—HXxK -

completed on 31 January 2011.

On 18 October 2011, the Company entered into the share placing RZZE——F+A+N\B  AARERMHEEN
agreement with a share placing agent relating to the placing of I Bt Bic &5 817,233,655 A& # A% 17 =1 32 B 17 B & 175
817,233,655 new shares. The share placing agreement was fulfilled and %o BRI EEHEEEK X MRPESHIER=
the share placing was completed on 3 November 2011. The shares with Z——F+—A=H%xK - AARIEH0.0328 T
the par value of HK$0.025 had been placed at a price of HK$0.032 to six Z (B M7~ 4 18 7 AL A B & (B 2 0.025 4 7T
independent placees. ZBAn o
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

140

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

On 18 October 2011, the Company entered into the share subscription
agreement with a subscriber pursuant to which the subscriber has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company had
conditionally agreed to allot and issue, 1,800,000,000 subscription
shares with the par value of HK$0.025 at the share subscription price of
HK$0.025 per subscription share. The conditions precedent under the
share subscription agreement were fulfilled and the share subscription
was completed on 24 November 2011 with the gross proceeds of
HK$45,000,000.

Date of share issued

RITRM B

31 January 2011
—ET—F%—A=+—H
3 November 2011
—E—F+—A=H
24 November 2011
—E——F+—A=+mA

On 13 April 2011, the Shareholders approved at a special general
meeting of the Company by way of poll to place convertible notes with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000. On 16 May 2011, the
placing of these placing convertible notes was completed. On 18 May
2011, such convertible notes were converted in full into 1,219,512,192
shares with the par value of HK$0.025 each and the conversion price was
adjusted to HK$0.082 as a result of the rights issue of the Company
completed in May 2011.

On 18 October 2011, the Company entered into the convertible notes
placing agreement with a placing agent with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$89,600,000. The conditions mentioned in the convertible
notes placing agreement were fulfilled and that the convertible notes
placing was completed on 29 November 2011. The convertible notes
have been placed to six independent placees. The convertible notes
were converted by the convertible notes holders at the conversion price
of HK$0.028 (convertible into 3,200,000,000 shares with par value of
HK$0.025) on the same day.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 23 February 2012, a
share consolidation on the basis that every 10 issued and unissued
shares with the par value of HK$0.025 each in the share capital of the
Company had been consolidated into 1 consolidated share with the par
value of HK$0.25 each with effective from 20 March 2012. Prior to the
date of share consolidation, there were 9,903,401,934 issued shares,
after the share consolidation, the number of issued shares changed to
990,340,193.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

35. BA& &\

Issue price

BITE

HK$0.74
0.74 77T
HK$0.032
0.0327% 7T
HK$0.025
0.025 % 7T

(&)

(&)

R-ZZ——F+A+/\B  AAREREHIL
RR1DRIE % - IRt - REBH B IEHREREM
A B A &4 R = Bl 3 & 317 1,800,000,000 A% &
R E{E0.025 87T 2 RN - BIHRBEEAER
REEAR(D 0.025 7 7T ° RN REBHHIE T &Rl
HEEK  MBROBBHIER=-T—F+—A4
—+PHHE5ER - FTf5 kI8 4858 £45,000,0007 7T

Number of
shares issued

e G

15,400,000

817,233,655

1,800,000,000

2,632,633,655

R-ZZE——FMA+=0  BREREAQFZBE
FRIAEUIRRERER AT A EREAR S 2
8 /100,000,000 7T 2 AR RIK - R=T——
FRAA+A A REZSEETEAREERER
e R=ZZE——FRAT+NB ZZABRREE
O M L 10 51,219,512,192 % & A% # {8 0.025
BTz’ - RREABERAARR-ZT——F
1 A SER AR M A EE & 0.082 8 T ©

RZZB——F+HA+/\RB ' AARELEERER
R 488 £589,600,0007% 7T 2 A A SRIRRT 3 e
B o TRRERAE B AR G EEX
mMABKRREREERER_E——F+—H
—HABEK - AHAREIRC RS TR B
BEA-RAB  TRRERETBREERSE AR
(8 0.028 7% 7T (A] {34 7% 3,200,000,000 A & A%
E{E0.025/8 T2 I’ fn) S -

WOARRAHA—T——F-_A=-+=Hz#A
EKFTHFE - IRA A RIRAF & 10 R SR EE0.025
BILZEBITRABEITRMHEMBIREEC2S
B EHBRDZEEETROEH  B=F
——F=RA=t+HEBER - RRHEHFBE 2
BETRME B 59,903,401,934 % - MAKRDE
(1% 814 990,340,193 % °
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Notes: (Continued)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 19 March 2012, the Company'’s issued share
capital was reduced by cancelling the issued and unissued share capital
to the extent of HK$0.24 each such that the par value of the issued and
unissued share capital was reduced from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 each, as a
result, approximately HK$237,682,000 was credited to the contributed
surplus of the Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 19 March 2012, the Company’s authorised
share capital was increased from HK$16,000,000 divided into
1,600,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$400,000,000
divided into 40,000,000,000 new shares by creation of 38,400,000,000

new shares.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 April 2012,
the completion of the Acquisition took place on 12 April 2012. As part of
the consideration of HK$310,000,000, the Convertible Note D in the
principal amount of HK$33,000,000 was issued by the Company. The
conversion price was HK$0.087 per conversion share. On 12 April 2012,
the Convertible Note D was converted in full into 379,310,344 ordinary
shares with the par value of HK$0.01 each.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 14 August 2012, a
share consolidation on the basis that every 8 issued and unissued shares
with par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company had
been consolidated into 1 consolidated share with par value of HK$0.08
each with effective from 10 September 2012. Prior to the date of share
consolidation, there were 1,369,650,537 issued shares, after the share

consolidation, the number of issued shares changed to 171,206,317.

On 7 September 2012, the Shareholders approved by way of poll the
rights issue on the basis of 2 rights shares for every one share held on
the record date of 19 September 2012 at a subscription price of HK$0.56
per rights share with bonus issue on the basis of 5 bonus shares for
every 1 rights share taken up under the right issue. The rights issue with
the bonus issue became unconditional on 11 October 2012. 342,412,634
rights shares and 1,712,063,170 bonus shares with the par value of
HK$0.08 each were allotted and issued on 11 October 2012 and net
proceeds of approximately HK$187,042,000 were raised. Details of the
rights issue and the bonus issue were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 14 August 2012.

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

35. BA& &\

K - (&)

BRER-Z-——F=A T NARTZARBRR
FRIXREMEBERRER  EBEHCETR
REFTRAEGR0.24BTTHIRAN A BB EITAA -

SEBRITRARBITRAZEEAER0.25ET
HIRESR0.017ETT - ERARAEHAGFER
#9237,682,000/8 7T °

BER T ——F=A+NBRTZAARRE
HAAGMBAETBEARAER BHER
38,400,000,000 BRFTAZD + #§ANR Al 2 A E AR A
16,000,000 7T * 9 % 1,600,000,000 i% & F% (&
0.018 L2 &A% » 3% 400,000,0007C * 95
40,000,000,000 A& T A% 15 °

BOARRBHA T ——FWNA+-_BHZRAE
FiE WBEEER-_Z——FmNA+=-HB%
X o {EAR{E 310,000,000 T2 25 AAFE
%17 N & % /5 33,000,000 7T 2 AT AR EHED -
HBEAESRHIBIRK0.087 8T - RZE——4&
MA+TZH IR EBRDERHEEAR
379,310,344 [X SR EI {E0.01 87T 2 L imAR -

BNMARRERLE T ——F/\A+HB ZBH
P B - RARRBRAH 8RR FREME0.01E
TLZ B BT RARETRGN A G 81 REE0.088
AN ZEEETRNEH B=F—=
FNARA+THRER - REMH A6 BT 2B #T
P17 8 B £ 1,369,650,537 B% -+ 1 HA B 1A & D% Bl
#3171,206,317 % ©

RZZF—=—FNALH  BERBREIRZERR
75 B R S AR AR AR (D 0.56 7 7T 2 R BE B 1T
HER(EEARBEAB(CE—=FLA+NE)
FBRA—RRGEZMREARRGD ) B AT
(BEEABEHRTEE —RERIRNOEZ AR
AR) o HARBAFIBITR T ——F+A+—HK
BN - 342,412,634 B F R {E0.08 75 70,2 i
A& A% (5 K 1,712,063, 170 AR E R =T — = F +
A+—BEZHERFET EEMEREFELD
187,042,000 7T © #AR RALFI 1 TRE BN AR
AIBPA-Z—=—FN\AT+EBEZBEK

FRETLHERAHES T EREH 2R
RGO EE RS -

All the shares which were issued during the years rank pari
passu with the then existing shares in all respects.
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36. OTHER RESERVES 36. Hb{#E
(a) THE GROUP (a) EK£HE

Contributed Translation

surplus reserve Total
BB RERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET T
At 1 January 2011, R_FE—%—H—H-
31 December 2011 and —ET——F+=A
1 January 2012 =t—RARZZE—Z=F
—H—H = (160) (160)
Capital reduction (Note 35(g))  RXANHIRL (A2t 35(g)) 237,682 = 237,682
Issue of bonus shares BEATHIRR (B 3£ 35())
(Note 35())) (136,965) - (136,965)
At 31 December 2012 R=-ZB—Z=fF
+=B=+—H 100,717 (160) 100,557
(b) THE COMPANY (b) AT

Contributed
surplus

BRBR
HK$'000
TAT

At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and N-—E—F—fF—H8 —T—%F =

1 January 2012 +TZA=+—BRZT——-F—-H—H
Capital reduction (Note 35(g)) A& Z IR (B 7t 35(g)) 237,682
Issue of bonus shares (Note 35(j)) BATALRR (K727 35()) (136,965)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——-F+=-A=+-—H 100,717
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. &R 2B AR RIK K
COMPANY

Statement of financial position information of the Company at RNA B S BAR 2 B AR5 2k B KR
the end of reporting period is as follows: T @
2012 2011
—E--F —T——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt THET FABT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L =& L 1,875 173
Investment deposit KE® = 10,000
Investments in subsidiaries RITB AR ZKE 38 - -
Convertible instruments designated AR T A (FBEA
as financial assets at fair value through ZAVEEBER
profit or loss PR EREE) 104,712 -
106,587 10,173
Current assets MENE
Other receivables Eoth pE kIR 6,873 1,194
Investment held for trading RHERSKRE 15,050 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) A S NS B R
(Kiaz) 441,089 352,643
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 16,704 21,170
479,716 375,007
Current liabilities mENBE
Other payables and accruals H Al & A~ FRIE &
FEEt &M 850 748
Amounts due to directors (Note) e EEHIA
(KtaE) 154 152
Note payable iEANE S 10,000 —
Interest payable FERTFILE 3,334 =
Borrowings BE = 10,000
Convertible notes AR ERE = -
14,338 10,900
Net current assets MENE ERE 465,378 364,107
Total assets less current liabilities BEARBERTBARG 571,965 374,280
Capital and reserves BERRfFEE
Share capital A& 7R 178,054 247,585
Share premium abayinl= 524,993 340,037
Share-based payment reserve VAR (D A ERE SR 1,367 =
Other reserves H At 100,717 =
Accumulated losses ZEEE (233,166) (213,342)
571,965 374,280
Note: The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Hiat : ZEFEAREER T EREREREER -
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38. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 38. AIIBABIZIRE
The Company
P /N
2012 2011
—E——-F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETIRE - KA = -
Less: Provision for impairment B ORER = -
Details of all the subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31 ARARIR-—_E——FERK _ZFE——F+_H
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: =+ —HBEFEZBERBARGRENT :

Place of Particulars of issued
Class of incorporation/ Place of  share capital/paidup Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary shares held establishment operations registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities

ERTRAE/

WEARERE FERAERN  EMAL/ Ayt SEHE BRIEMERFE AEEEERE TEER
2012 2011
—g--f —3-F

Direct subsidiaries:

HEWEAR
Best Harvest Asia Limited Ordinary shares ~ British Virgin Islands ~ HK US$1 100% 100%  Securities trading
(“BVI")
EBTNERAR EEk BRAEE BB (B9 100% 100% #EHEE
(ZBRZEE])
Smart Source Corporation Ordinary shares  Hong Kong ("HK") ~ HK HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited

ERARAR EEK BB (EE]) BB BT 100% 100% REER

Joy Wealth Finance Limited ~ Ordinary shares  HK HK HK$1 100% 100%  Money lending

ERHBERAR BB &b BB 1AL 100% 100% fRE

Treasure Brand Limited Ordinary shares BV HK US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
HE KBRAEE BB (3 100% 100% REER

Century Praise Limited Ordinary shares ~ BVI HK US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
R KBRS &b 1% 100% 100% RERR

Alpha Riches Limited Ordinary shares BV HK US$1 100% 100% Inactive
il RBRAEE BB (3 100% 100% EEXH

Perpetual Master' Ordinary shares ~ BVI HK US$1 100% - Investment holding
BRI RERLAEE &b (B9 100% - REER

Create World Enterprises Ordinary shares ~ HK HK HK$1 100% - Inactive

Development Limited? ERR 0 B 1587 100% - EEZK
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38. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. RHIBATZ’RE (@)

Particulars of issued
share capital/paid up
registered capital
BRTRE/
HREMERFE

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Place of
operations

Class of
shares held

Attributable equity
interest of the Group

Name of subsidiary

Principal activities

WEARER FERGER SRR/ RItH SEbH FREEERE

2012 2011
—g-=f —2——f

TERE

Indirect subsidiaries:

BENELR :
BEAANGEEH AR Ordinary shares  PRC PRC HK$780,000 100% 100%  Inactive
BRAR?
LRk i HE 780,000 77T 100% 100% EEEH
Pacific Vision Advisory Ordinary shares ~ HK HK HK$1 100% - Provision for corporate
Services Limited secretarial and
consultancy services
AEBARGEARAR ERR &b Bt 1R 100% - REGEWER
RS
Blooming Faith Ordinary shares  HK HK HK$1 100% - Inactive
Development Limited”
EER B Bt 1AL 100% - EEXH
Profit Grand* Ordinary shares BV BVI usD170 30% - Investment holding
il RREUHS RRELHS 17037t 30% - REER
|-Sky Natural* Ordinary shares  PNG PNG PKG100 30% - Forestry business
Eak B B 10054 30% - BiEH
HMERE MERD

REBE=—R——F+=-A=+—RLFEKRTHE
iToAva

Newly incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2012. L

Blooming Faith Development Limited (“Blooming Faith”) and Create 2

World Enterprises Development Limited (“Create World"”) were
incorporated on 2 August 2012 and 3 August 2012 respectively, in which
the Group acquired 100% of their issued share capital both at a
consideration of HK$1 on 20 July 2012. Blooming Faith and Create
World were inactive at the date of acquisition and hence the Directors
considered that the considerations paid were approximately to their fair
value at the acquisition date.

The Company is registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprise.

On 12 April 2012, the Group completed the Acquisition. Profit Grand is
regarded as a subsidiary of the Group as the Group has control over
Profit Grand by the control over the majority composition of the board of
directors of Profit Grand and 51% of the total voting rights in the general
meetings of Profit Grand.

Blooming Faith Development Limited([ Blooming
Faith]) }& Create World Enterprises Development
Limited ([ Create World]) D BIR =T ——F/\ A
“HRZZFE——FNA=ZAFMEL - MAEER
RZZE——FEAZTHAMBTRBYER
&2 B E1TARZA100% ° M # Blooming Faith &
Create World A fE B B8 BT |75 - iE
ERE BAREEFZENKEBRBZ XA TEE
5o

ZABAINEBE L E AR o

R-ZZE——FMA+_-_A AEEZKKES
15 © Profit Grand R AR EE 2B AR « Ty
R AR 5 B35 1B 45 | Profit Grand EE & 2 K&
2K B K& 5B Profit Grand R R A BIEEHE 2
51% i i2 #| Profit Grand °

RER B FREMRERE - SMEQEME
ERERES

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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39. COMMITMENTS
OPERATING LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

39. &iE
KREHE
KEBEBREA
AEEBECLHEETHEESTHASR
2o NRAHAR - AR BARIE R Al RGEAE 4
MEMALN A% SEREREHEND
HEDA :

2012

—_E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
Within one year —F R 1,641 2,108
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERF(BEERMF) 1,163 2,804
2,804 4,912

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of 2.8
years (2011: 2 to 2.8 years).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition
of a subsidiary contracted but not provided for
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— T__EE
HK$'000
FHET
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's existing share option scheme was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 June 2002.

During the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2012 (the
"AGM"), the Shareholders duly approved the relevant
resolutions to terminate the then existing share option
scheme which had expired on 21 June 2012 and to adopt a
new share option scheme (“New Share Option Scheme”) by
authorising the Directors to allot and issue up to the 10
percent of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the AGM, that was 136,965,053 shares of the
Company, under the New Share Option Scheme. The
Directors or an authorised committee were authorised, at
their/its absolute discretion, to grant options to any person,
subject to the selection criteria, being an employee, officer,
agent, consultant or representative of the Group, including
any executive or non-executive directors, in order to provide
incentives to the grantee to contribute to the Group and to
enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract resources that were valuable to the Group. Under the
New Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options
to any participant, in the absolute discretion of the Board,
who has made valuable contribution to the business of the
Group. The subscription price will be a price determined by
the Board and at least the highest of (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of grant of the option, which must be a
business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition on 12 April 2012, an
option had been conditionally granted by the Company to
each of P EIBEI R T X (KB ) 22 7 (China Longjiang
Forest Industry (Group) General Corporation®) (“Longjiang
Forest Industry”) and Jia Run Investments Limited (“Jia Run”)
to subscribe for not more than 49,517,009 shares of the
Company after the proposed share consolidation as
mentioned in Note 35(f) to the consolidated financial
statements became effective (equivalent to 6,189,626 shares
of the Company after the proposed share consolidation as
mentioned in Note 35(i) to the consolidated financial
statements becoming effective) (the “Longjiang Option” and
the “Agent Option” respectively). After the rights issue as
mentioned in Note 35(j) to the consolidated financial
statements became effective, the number of shares could be
subscribed became 12,936,318. The Longjiang Option and
Agent Option were granted to Longjiang Forest Industry and
Jia Run respectively for the establishment of a strategic
alliance between the Company and Longjiang Forest Industry
with respect to the development and management of the
forest acquired under the Acquisition with the assistance of
Jia Run as an agent. No share options had been exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2012 under the
Longjiang Option and Agent Option.

* For identification purpose only
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40. BBRERTE

ARRBREZ BBRET S RER —FT—
FRAZT—HBBIORBERRMN

R-B— =X A+ BRI BRAEA
& (REEEAR ) b RELXIERL
BR—E——E~A—+—AER> HEE
BREBE I AEREE - LRATRR
HEE B ([TaBARAEE B ) - EIEE SRR
BARES BT RBTALA TR REEEA
EEHEYEBTRASRS10% M
136,965,053 AR A A7 - ESHERER
BeREE N2 RBEREIEEERT
AALBLBRE  ZEALT AKERE
B BRBE - REA - BESAE (RS
AABARERTES) - = REHAEA
SRR SE - LHAEBESLE

B B Ok 407K S T LB E A AR - AR 1B
A B AN AEES 2 RBIE
DAHAEEEHELEE TS 2R
AHBHERE AEESHEFEEER
TEER THBBEHE : (o) BHBRIE B
(U/EREER) FEM X 74 B 3R (B & R
PUTE : (o) BB L AR > B A TR
% A ER S A RER RN F LS
8 R(QBRHEME -

WEEEN —E——Em A+ - A5RE
AATDBIAAF R IAMIE(EE) AN
AIEIZMITED REBHEEGRAH
([528 ]) BIEHEER L EtE - AD BIRE T8
WBAE A B RS IR M AT 35(F) Pt ;23 AR 10 & fF
A R 1% 2 49,517,009 B 2R A 7] B 0 (F8 & 7
4R A BA TSR MY 5 35() ATt s A & B £
W1 2 6,189,626 XA R RIBE D) (2Bl A& B2
TTHIRE | R [RIBHEIRE ) - REEA M BHRE
B ¥ 35() ATt (R A AE 218 - AT EREB IR D 2
H B 512,936,318 i% o BE/T B4 R R IR HA e
TR P IHRMIERRE  ERE
EBRIEZHEN THARREETIRMITE
MEREREEWEEETINE 2 HRMELR
BEsEE - Bz —FE——F+=-H=+—H1t
FE - MERBRETEERRIBERETEE
AT B AR AE o
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 40. BERRRESHE ()

The movements of the share options of the Company during AR BN B BERRRE A AN F [ 2
the year are as follows:

Outstanding Adjustment Adjustment Outstanding on
on 1 January Granted  due to share due to right Lapsed 31 December
Option type 2012 during 2012 consolidation* issue* during 2012

R-E-%
-B-B R-E-ZE RRGEH RitRm  R-E-ZE
HER MR Bl miELERr fEth AR b

Other eligible persons

EAgRAL
— Longjiang Forest Industry Longjiang Option - 49 517,009 (43,327,383) 6,746,692 - 12,936,318
—RIAMIE EILi
— JiaRun Agent Option - 49,517,009 (43,327,383) 6,746,692 (12,936,318) -
—RE 28
- 99,034,018 (86,654,766) 13,493,384 (12,936,318) 12,936,318
Weighted average exercise price - HK$0.375 HK$3 HK$2 HK$2 HK$2
IngFHTRE - 037587 3T 2B 2k 2B
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: FERARI B 2 FIBIN T
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise Price
i B BEEH {8 M
Longjiang Option 12 April 2012 Upon the grant of Forestry ~ For 1 year but no later HK$2*
Authority Clearance than 31 December 2015
BT —E——FWA+=A RELFRNER B  —% BTER-Z—LF 28~
+=A=+—-8
Agent Option 12 April 2012 12 April 2012 Up to 31 December 2012 HK$2*
RIZHE “T-_FMA+_H “Z-_FWA+-H EE"E—_F 28T
+=A=+—-AL
* Following the share consolidation and rights issues on 10 September * EROHAHEERSMR-ZE—=—FNLATAK
2012 and 20 September 2012 respectively, the exercise prices of share —E——FENA-TARRE  BREZITERE
options were adjusted from maximum of HK$0.5 and minimum of HEE 058 TR &IK025BTLHAEE RS 2B T
HK$0.25 to maximum of HK$2 and minimum of HK$2. The number of B R 2T - BERRREE B TR E RS A Of B4R
share option was also adjusted as a result of the share consolidation and e F% -
rights issue.
Share-based payment expenses of HK$1,367,000 (2011: Nil) VAR 7 2 E RS BB 1,367,000 70 (=&
has been included in the consolidated income statement for —— F:\E\)BIWABE_ZE——F+_H4
the year ended 31 December 2012. It gave rise to a share- =t+—HItFEEZGAWSER  AmMES—
based payment reserve. No liabilities were recognised due to TEUAPS (D BEE S R o WA SRR
these equity-settled share-based payment transactions. HEE AR AERNRXZ SHEREEE -
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair values of Longjiang Option and Agent Option
determined at the date of grant using the Monte Carlo
simulation method were approximately HK$1,339,000 and
HK$28,000 respectively.

As the fair value of the services received could not be
estimated reliably by the Company, the fair value of service
received from Longjiang Forest Industry and Jia Run was
measured indirectly by reference to the fair value of the
option granted.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair

values of share options:

ire B HmRM R
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40. BB ESTE ()

SRR R BOE R R HIME N IR B
PR H B HZ X FED RIK 51,339,000
7T 5% 28,000 % 7T

BT EARTE < A FEEER AR F A S
HfhET - MUK B 38T AR T2 K 22 B AT U X
RS2 A FEL2EMEH B2 ATFER

BIEETE -

AEBREATEMARKRET

Longjiang

Option

FESLHARE
Grant date X HH 12 April 2012 12 April 2012
—E——F —E——4F
MA+=H MA+=H
Share price AP B 1 HK$0.083/ 87  HK$0.083 77T
Exercise price (before share consolidation TEEB(RHEFL HK$0.25 to HK$0.25 to
and right issues) A% AT HK$0.5 HK$0.5
0.25%87LE 0.25%8LE
0.587T 0587
Expected option period e HA i i e 48 A 1.723 years®  0.641 years F
Expected volatility TEHR R iR 205.924% 82.203%
Risk-free interest rate 4 7 [ ) R 0.207% 0.145%

The Monte Carlo simulation method has been used in
computing the fair value of the share options based on the
Directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in fair value of the
Longjiang Option and Agent Option.

WA T EDERRE REEAAES
ZREGHHEEY - TEERRBR S
ISR TR R BN AT
D -
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41.

150

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

As mentioned in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, Century Praise has entered into a conditional
agreement with the Vendors on 2 December 2011 (the “Profit
Grand S&P Agreement”) for the Acquisition at a
consideration of HK$310,000,000. The consideration of the
Acquisition was satisfied by (i) cash of HK$82,000,000, (ii)
Promissory Notes with aggregate principal amount of
HK$195,000,000 and (iii) convertible notes with aggregate
principal amount of HK$33,000,000. The Acquisition was
completed on 12 April 2012.

According to the Profit Grand S&P Agreement, the Group
would have the control over the majority composition of the
board of directors of Profit Grand and 51% of the total voting
rights in the general meetings of Profit Grand. Accordingly,
the Directors considered that Profit Grand Group became
one of its indirect subsidiaries of the Group and the financial
performance of the Profit Grand Group would be
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Group after completion of the Acquisition.

CONSIDERATION TRANSFERRED

41. BB AR

AN AR A B 7S R 3R MY 5E 20 T #lt ¢ Century
Praise ER—_ZE——F+ A _HHWES
TH B B 5 5] M — B A & 15 & ([Profit
Grand B E 5 #% 1) - X & & 310,000,000 %
TG o WIEEB 2 RETIA T A RER « ()
LAZE & {8 17 82,000,000/8 7T (i) A& 4858 A
195,000,000 7T Z 7 5 B HE K (i) A& 42
%A 433,000,000 70 2 AT IR 245 - BB S
HERZZ——FWA+=ZHAZEK -

1R ¥& Profit Grand B & 7% + A& B #50] 5
il Profit Grand 2 & F & #8 X & 7 Profit
Grand RER A& E1TFEHRIEEHE 2 51% o
At - EER A - Profit Grand B E KX &
AEEETHEENEBARR 22— mProfit
Grand & B 2 Bf 75 55 48 FO UK B 5 18 T2 Ak 12 1
MARSE 2 ir e MR RIGEFTE -

HEAE

HK$'000
TAET

Cash Re
Promissory Notes R

Convertible Note D at fair value (Note 34)

13
Of]

Adjusted consideration &

The Directors considered that the carrying value of the
Promissory Notes at issuance date approximate to its fair
value due to short-term maturity.
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
NET ASSETS RECOGNISED AT THE DATE OF
ACQUISITION

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

41. WEEKMIB AT (&)

RWBEHRREZEERE

Carrying value Fair value
fREE AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Deposit for application of logging concession  ERFEKR AR 2 324 269 269

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The non-controlling interest (70%) in Profit Grand Group
recognised at the date of Acquisition was measured by
reference to the proportionate share of recognised amounts
of net assets of the Profit Grand Group.

GOODWILL ARISING ON THE ACQUISITION

IR RS

U B8 £ 18 H HAfE R Z Profit Grand 55 B 3E
PR 25 (70%) TH#E 22 KA Profit Grand % &
ZEEFECHERSERMOMGLAIEE -

WIREHELE2HE

HK$'000
TAET

Consideration transferred BEECRE 306,100
Add: non-controlling interests o FEEERR R 188
Less: recognised amount if identifiable W BERBABRFEEZEHALE

net assets acquired (269)
Goodwill arising on the Acquisition (Note 19) WS ETHEE 28 (it 19) 306,019

Goodwill recognised in a business combination is an asset
representing the future economic benefits arising from other
assets acquired in a business combination that are not
individually identified and separately recognised. The future
economic benefits may result from synergy between the
identifiable assets acquired or from assets that, individually,
do not qualify for recognition in the financial statements. As
at the date of this report, certain consents, licenses and
approvals are still under negotiation and have not been
obtained, the inherent logging concession is not identifiable
and distinguishable from the goodwill of the Profit Grand
Group. Accordingly, the fair value attributable to the Profit
Grand Group is allocated as goodwill instead of an intangible
asset.

None of the goodwill arising on the Acquisition is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

REBE HER 2B BRSSPIk E
2 E B EM R AR E W =K —HE
B - HEFEERZR B IER o RRLK
EW A R BB P R B EE < TR EE A
15 [ VE FB Sk 38 BB = A0 {8l Il 70 B 75 R 2k
ReBEAREHE  FTRE - 7 &b
HE AR RADEREERE R - BURB AR
5 5 1 N AT 1 Profit Grand £ [ i 2 A 3 Bl
K& o AL 0 Profit Grand & B JE 15 A F
BEESREABEMIERFEE -

BHRERWESEMEE ZEBET AR
PiIA o
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING ON THE
ACQUISITION

41. WEEKMIB AT (&)

WIREHELE 2R SR HFHE

HK$'000
TR

Consideration paid in cash NRBeEZM2RE 82,000
Less: deposit paid as at 31 December 2011 W —E——F+_-_HA=1+—H

ZEfiES (20,000)
Net cash outflow WML 62,000

IMPACT OF THE ACQUISITION ON THE RESULTS
OF THE GROUP

Included in the profit for the year is loss of approximately
HK$5,000 attributable to the Profit Grand Group. No revenue
for the year is attributable to the Profit Grand Group.

Had the Acquisition been effected at the beginning of the
year, the total amount of revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would have been approximately
HK$34,720,000, and the amount of the profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$62,341,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
Acquisition been completed at the beginning of the year, nor
it is intended to be a projection of future results.
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42. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 42.
On 13 October 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Favor Way (the “"S&P Agreement”)
for disposal of 51% equity interest in Delta Wealth. Pursuant
to the S&P Agreement, Favor Way has conditionally agreed
to acquire 51% equity interest in Delta Wealth at the
consideration of HK$52,000,000, which included HK$4,000,000
cash consideration and the cancellation of convertible notes
with principal amount of HK$48,000,000 which was issued to
Favor Way on 19 October 2010. The transaction was
completed on 22 December 2011.

ire B HmRM R
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HE—KRHEA T
N_E—F+A+=H AEERLEE
RS 51% IR AR HE 25 B2 Favor Way 5] 2 B &
mE(EEH=ZE] - BIEEE W% - Favor
Way B 1§ 4 R B 4 i & 8 Bl = 51% IR 748 7
#= R 1B /A52,000,00087T  EFRBFERE
X E4,000000% 7T R T H A & BB
48,000,000/ T Z AT IR BB (ZEEETY
RZZFE—ZTF+ A+ N B %17 FFavor
Way) e RGN _F——F+-_HF=-+=-H
TERX °

22 December

2011
—E——fF
+t=-A=+=H
HK$'000
FHTT
Net assets disposed of: FrHEFEE :
Loan receivables JEW & X 126,489
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR NI E 8,906
Other receivables Hofth pE kIR 767
Other borrowings HibEE (32,000)
Trade and other payables JEAT BRAR S B At FE A SRR (2,364)
Loans from shareholders of a subsidiary —XMBRARIKEZER (109,491)
Amount due to a related company FER —REBE R FIFRIE (3,017)
Tax liabilities MIBAE (3,182)
(13,892)
Non-controlling interests SRR 6,491
Shareholder’s loan ARERE 44,236
36,835
Gain on disposal HE K 11,199
Total consideration BRE 48,034
Satisfied by: TR
Cancellation of Convertible Note A upon disposal of HEE GRS B i
Delta Wealth (Note 34) ARRERA (K5t 34) 48,000
Cash Re 4,000
Exercise of put option (Note 27) TR, BARE (Bt aF 27) (3,966)
48,034
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS RTFE
Cash consideration RERE 4,000
Bank balances and cash RITHESBR LR (8,906)
(4,906)

The gain on disposal was included in loss for the year in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2011.

BE_T——Ft-A=1+—HLEFEZH
ERERREBE R AFARBE -
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44.
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
has issued Convertible Note D and Promissory Notes
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$33,000,000
and HK$195,000,000 respectively as part of the
consideration of the Acquisition (Note 41).

(b)  On 12 April 2012, Convertible Note D with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$33,000,000 were converted in
full into 379,310,344 ordinary shares with par value of
HK$0.01 each (Note 35(h)).

(c)  During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
disposed of the 51% equity interest in Delta Wealth at
the consideration of HK$52,000,000, which included the
cancellation of Convertible Note A with principal
amount of HK$48,000,000 (Note 42).

(d) On 18 May 2011 and 29 November 2011, convertible
notes with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 and HK$89,600,000 were converted in
full into 1,219,512,912 and 3,200,000,000 shares
respectively with par value of HK$0.025 each (Note
35(e)).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
CONTRIBUTION

The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme") for all of its employees in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule
of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contributions payable to the scheme by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. For the year
ended 31 December 2012, contributions of the Group under
the MPF Scheme and the funds amounted to approximately
HK$325,000 (2011: HK$92,000).

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

43.

44.

FEFRERS

@ BE2—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HI#®H
B AEEEETASRESANA
33,000,000 7% 7t K 195,000,000 Jt 2
AMIREED RANZE - fEAlE
FIH 7 BoMRE (FFzE41) ©

by RZZE——FNA+=H: ' AL
7/533,000,00078 JT 2 Al # & ZHE D E
2 4,30 5 379,310,344 % & A% I 1B 0.01
PEIT 2 TR (5E35(h)) °

0 BEZT——F+-A=1+—HBILHF
f& » 7K % B LA X {8 52,000,000 % 7T
EEBRMESI%RE  REIEHAS
#/%48,000,000% 7T 2 AT AR =R A (T
iE42) o

RZE——FRAT+NBHE=F——
F+—A-t+hB A&EELHAE
100,000,000 7t K 89,600,000 It &
AR RIR B BB L 10 51,219,512,912
fi% % 3,200,000,000 A% & A% 1 1& 0.025 7
TLZ & (ME5E35(e)) °

BB R B SR

AEECREEBEBEEZMBHIERTE
& ([BEEE]) - BB EARNEE
REBRFIEAES BRI AR ERES
EEEREM - BEEFECEERAE
B EENRRE  E2d—BUXFEAR
B RBEBRESFE RN BEREESR
AR BIEBRAIEE Z LR A EIEL R -
AEBE BB E 2 E—RE/REE
TR PR K -

BE5ABIRIRZ AR BFELRA
BRI BIGEA  E E BR AN 2
BB 2GR BE-F =%
+ZA=+-RLEE  AREREAED
SHEIR AR R 2 G134 3250008 T
(ZZF——%F : 92,0008 7T) °
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Included in other receivables was amount due from a
substantial shareholder, which is disclosed pursuant to
Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinances
as follows:

Allied Summit Inc. Allied Summit Inc.

The amount due is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
paid an underwriting commission of approximately
HK$3,229,000 to Allied Summit Inc. (2011: Nil).

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The remuneration of Directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits 72 HATE A
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trend.

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, the Group has
disposed of 594,000, 5,000,000 and 1,406,000 shares of
Huili Resources (Group) Limited, the share of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1303), which
represents the whole amount of investment in held for
trading as stated on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2012, with the sales
proceeds of HK$1,461,240, HK$12,250,000 and
HK$3,458,760 on 22 January 2013, 1 February 2013 and
5 February 2013 respectively.

ire B HmRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE

45. BEALTRS

(a) ER—Z2FTERFEFACTAHMRE
WkIE - HIRBES D A EHI5E 1618
{EIFTUT

Maximum

amount
outstanding
during

the year

2012
—E—_F
HK$'000
THET

FRAREER 2011
BEE<HE =T
HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

274 274 -

FEU IR S BB - TEHFIE KA

TREE -

BE_T——F+_A=+—HIHF

E - RE A [ Allied Summit Inc. 3215 685

% 3,229,000 (=T ——4F : #&) o
by =EEEASEE

FRN BEEREMEBEEAS 2
ST

2012
—E——F

HK$'000
FET

HK$'000
TR

2,798 473

EERTEZTHRABZME Ty
ZEERSEMARALRTGELE
BT -

46. HBEWREE

@ RZE—=-—F+-_A=+—Hz%"
AEBLEER-_TE—=F—A=+=
B —2—=%#"AF—B8Fk=%F—=
F_ARABLEENER(ER) AR
ANE(ERDREERZT ET - BRHNR
5% :1303) 2 & 15 594,000 %
5,000,000 & & 1,406,000 B - 87 =
T——F+ - A=+ BHEAUHK
MRMERMRFBERZRERTE L&
Fr 15 3 H o 5l 51,461,240 T »
12,250,000/ 7T } 3,458,760 & TT °
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(b) On 5 February 2013, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with an independent third party for
providing a loan facility of up to HK$60,000,000 at
interest rate of 3% per month and arrangement fee of

2% of the loan facility for a term of six months from the
date of initial drawdown. The Group shall have absolute
discretion as to whether to make available any sum for
drawdown which is subject to inter alia, the provision of
securities or collaterals with principal value of not less
than the sum of drawing.

As at report date, approximately of HK$14,574,000 has
been utilised from such facility line by that customer
with a collateral of promissory note issued by a company

listed on the Stock Exchange with principal amount of
HK$34,000,000.

47. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

In order to conform to the current year presentation, certain
items in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2011 have been reclassified.
Reclassification adjustments is made to reclassify interest
expenses amounting to approximately HK$2,652,000 to cost
of sales and such reclassification has no impact on the
Group's loss the for year ended 31 December 2011.

Details of the restatement are provided as follows:

Items on consolidated income statement #HZE=-ZF——F+=A1
for the year ended 31 December 2011 =t-HILFEZ
GERHERER
Income expense WAR %
Cost of sales SHERA
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46. HEHREE (&)

by R-ZE—=6_"_HAHAH AEFHE—
EBNE=HRIN—BERBGE N
2 4 %8 & =% 60,000,000 T2 &
REE AE3E - UNERFEEZ2%
EAZHEBR  BEXIRAE BBt
BEANEAR - REBE R 2EMBERTE
EATHESBEUAEIRE  WEHEFTE
15) IR RS - mEERED
RFTHREREEE ©

RBEBH ZBXFEBAZRMESR
& #914,574,0007 7T I he it — R B
R EMRAIFABETASES
34,000,000 7 7T 2 # W E I VE & K 3

]
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47. Lt B EF
ARAAEEY 2 FR  HE-_Z——F
+- A=+ —BItFEEGABNECET
BEESHHE - BFHENHAENERX
492,652,0008 TEHDEEHERA - T
BEES D EHAEERE T ——F+=
B=t+—BitFEsERETEYE .

EFIREDT -

Amount
originally Amount
stated as restated

BiEE
HK$'000

TR

Reclassification
BEFDE
HK$'000

THT

RE25EHE
HK$'000
TET

2,652 (2,652) -
- 2,652 2,652
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